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                                                                                                                   swati@salarpuriagroup.com 
 
Date:  08-09-2023 
 
To, 
The Manager 
Listing Department 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 
Scrip Code: 542906 

To, 
The Manager 
Listing Department 
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
7, Lyons Range, 
Kolkata – 700 001 
Scrip Code: 10015065 

 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
Subject: Submission of Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, and in furtherance to 
our letter dated September 06, 2023 wherein the Company had informed that the 41st Annual 
General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company will be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023, at 12:00 
Noon. IST, a copy of the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023 is enclosed herewith. 
 
The Annual Report is also being hosted on the website of the Company at 
http://easuncapitalmarkets.com/ 
 
This is for your information and records.  
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
Aditya Sadani 
Wholetime Director 
DIN: 09023418 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encl: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023 
 

PI R D. 



  Regd. Office: 7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 3rd Floor, Bowbazar, Kolkata – 700072, West Bengal, India 
 CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938   Telephone No: (+91) 33 4014 540   Fax: (+91) 33 2225 2471 
 Website: http://www.easuncapitalmarkets.com  Email: cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com 

 swati@salarpuriagroup.com 

Notice to the Shareholders 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty First (41st) Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of the Members of EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED (CIN: 
L51109WB1982PLC034938) (“the Company”) will be held on Saturday, September 
30, 2023 at 1.00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

Item No. 1:  To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

Item No. 2: To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anand Prakash (DIN: 00061566), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

Item No. 3 : To appoint Statutory Auditors for a continuous period of 5 years, as 
the present Auditors have communicated their unwillingness to continue and to 
pass the following with or without modification : 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 142 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification, 
amendment or enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Rakesh Ram 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No.: 325145E) 
be and are hereby appointed as the  Statutory Auditor of the Company in place of 
M/s. V K Tulsyan & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
326740E), the outgoing statutory auditor, to hold the office from the conclusion 
of this 41st  Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 46th  Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2028 at such remuneration plus 
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses in connection with 
the Audit as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the Auditors.” 

Date: 06-09-2023 
Place: Kolkata 

By the Order of the Board 
For Easun Capital Markets Limited 

Sd/-    
Swati Modi 
Company Secretary 



NOTES: 
 

1. Additional Information pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI LODR Regulations, 
2015, as amended from time to time, is annexed to this Notice. 

2. The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Act relating 
to the Special Businesses to be transacted at the AGM, is annexed hereto. 
Further, the Explanatory Statement relating to Ordinary Businesses in Item 
No. 3 to be transacted at the AGM is also annexed hereto. 

3. In view of the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular dated 5th May 2020 
read with General Circulars dated 8th April 2020, 13th April 2020, 15th June 
2020, 28th September 2020, 31st December 2020, 13th January 2021 and 5th 
May 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding 
of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” or ”Meeting”) through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) facility or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without 
the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Further, 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its Circular dated 12th 
May 2020, 15th January 2021 and 13th May 2022 (“SEBI circular”) has also 
granted certain relaxations. In compliance with the provisions of the Act, 
Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 41st  AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC/ OAVM on  Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 1.00 P.M. IST. 
The deemed venue for the 41st AGM will be the Registered Office of the 
Company. 

4. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF 
THE COMPANY. However, since this AGM is held through VC/OAVM 
only, pursuant to the MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 
is not available for this AGM and they are encouraged to attend and 
participate through VC/OAVM. However, the Body Corporates are 
entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes 
through e-voting. Accordingly, Route Map, Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

5. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative, together with attested specimen 
signature of the representative(s) under the said Board Resolution, to attend 
and vote by VC/OAVM at the AGM at Company at its Registered Office or by 
email at swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com 

6. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, persons whose name stands first 
on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote. 

7. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before 
and after the scheduled time i.e. Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 1.00 P.M. 
IST of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served 
basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. The detailed instructions for joining 
the meeting through VC/OAVM form part of the Notes to this Notice. 

8. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will 
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 



9. REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS WILL REMAIN 
CLOSED from Monday, September 25, 2023 to Saturday, September 30, 
2023 (BOTH DAYS INCLUSIVE). 

10.In line with the MCA General Circular No 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and 
SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 read 
with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 
2021, physical copies of financial statements (including Board’s Report, 
Auditor’s Report and every other document required by law to be annexed 
or attached to the financial statements) shall not be dispatched, instead they 
shall be sent only by email to the members and all other persons so entitled, 
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 
Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested 
to register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including 
Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 
Further, Annual Report can also be accessed from the website of the 
Company at http://easuncapitalmarkets.com/ and also websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and Calcutta Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.cse-india.com respectively, as per protocol of 
respective exchange. 

11.In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Notice 
convening the 41st AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company 
at http://easuncapitalmarkets.com/ and may also be accessed from the 
relevant section of the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and 
Calcutta Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.cse-india.com and the website of CDSL (agency for providing the 
Remote e-Voting facility), as per protocol of respective exchange. 

12.Members desirous of having any information on the business to be 
transacted at the AGM are requested to address their queries to the 
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company or by email at 
swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com at least 
seven days before the date of the meeting, so that requisite information is 
made available at the meeting. 

13.The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
shareholding, maintained under section 170 of the Act, and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained 
under section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by 
the members. Members can send an e-mail to swati@salarpuriagroup.com 
and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com requesting for inspection of the said 
Registers. 

14.SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 
(‘Circular’) dated 3rd November, 2021 has provided common and simplified 
norms for processing investor’s service request by RTA’s and norms for 
furnishing PAN, KYC and Nomination details. 
As per the said Circular, it is mandatory for the shareholders holding 
securities in physical form to inter-alia furnish PAN, KYC and Nomination 
details. Physical folios wherein the PAN, KYC and Nomination details are not 
available shall be frozen by the RTA on or after 1st April, 2023. Holders of 
such frozen folios shall be eligible to lodge their grievance or avail service 
request from the RTA only after furnishing the complete documents / details. 
Similarly, the holders of such frozen folios shall be intimated in case of any 
payment including dividend, interest or redemption stating that such 
payment is due and shall be made electronically upon furnishing complete 
documents / details. 
Pursuant to the said Circular, the Company has sent individual letters to all 
the Members holding shares of the Company in physical form for furnishing 
their PAN, KYC details (i.e., Postal Address with Pin Code, email address, 



mobile number, bank account details) and Nomination details through Form 
ISR-1. The said Form ISR-1 can be downloaded from the website of the RTA 
at https://nichetechpl.com/downloads/. 

15.Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022 
has mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in demat form only 
while processing service requests viz., issue of duplicate securities 
certificate, claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal/exchange of 
securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/splitting of securities 
certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and 
transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests 
by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4, the format of which is 
available on the website of the RTA at https://nichetechpl.com/downloads/. 
Members holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are 
requested to kindly get their equity shares converted into demat/electronic 
form since transfer of equity shares/issuance of equity shares in physical 
form have been disallowed by SEBI. 

16.Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to notify to the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent [M/s. Niche Technologies 
Private Limited, 3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata – 
700017], quoting their folio number, any change in their registered address 
with PIN CODE/mandate/bank details and in case the shares are held in 
dematerialized form, this information should be passed on to their respective 
Depository Participants. 

17.As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the facility for 
making/varying/cancelling nominations is available to individuals holding 
shares in the Company. Nominations can be made in Form SH-13 and any 
variation/cancellation thereof can be made by giving notice in Form SH-14, 
prescribed under the Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 
for the purpose.  The Forms can be obtained from the RTA at 
https://nichetechpl.com/downloads/. The Members holding shares in demat 
form may contact their respective depository participant(s) for making such 
nominations. 

18.VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 
In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 and 
the revised Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) issued by ICSI 
read with MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020, 
January 13, 2021 and May 5, 2022, the Company is providing members the 
facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be 
considered at the AGM by electronic means and the business may be 
transacted through e-Voting Services. The remote e-voting facility will be 
provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), the 
authorized e-Voting agency. 
 
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as 
the e-voting system on the date of the AGM through VC or OAVM will be 
provided by CDSL. The members who have not cast their vote by remote e-
voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through e-voting 
system. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to 
the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
again. 

  



 
The instructions to shareholders for remote e-voting and e-voting during 
AGM and joining meeting through VC/OAVM are as under: 

(i) The remote e-voting period commences on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 
(9:00 AM) and ends on Friday, September 29, 2023 (5:00 PM). During this 
period, members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Saturday, September 23, 
2023, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution 
is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. Note: E-Voting shall not be allowed beyond said time. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be 
entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
09.12.2020 and to increase the efficiency of the voting process, e-voting has 
been enabled to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/websites of depositories/ 
depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only 
facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 
of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
09.12.2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

(v) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
09.12.2020, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is 
given below: 
 

TYPE OF 
SHAREHOLDER
S 

LOGIN METHOD 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL’s Easi/ Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URLs for users to login to Easi 
/ Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New 
System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at: 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/registration/easiregistr
ation 



4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page 
or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with NSDL 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IdeAS facility, 
please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IdeAS’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IdeAS e-Services, option 
to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. 
Select “Register Online for IdeAS “Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/secureWeb/ideasdirectreg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
received in registered mobile & email and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
Demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participant 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After successful login, you 
will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s 



website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above 
mentioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
for any technical issues related to login through depository i.e. CDSL and 
NSDL: 
LOGIN TYPE HELPDESK DETAILS 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 and 022-23058542-43. 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at Toll free No.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 
(vi) Login method for remote e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Physical 

shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding shares in demat 
form. 
a. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com during the voting period. 
b. Click on “Shareholders” tab. 
c. Now Enter your User ID 

(a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
(b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
(c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company, excluding the special characters. 
d. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
e. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 

f. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 

PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN 
INDIVIDUAL HOLDING SHARES IN DEMAT FORM 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the 
sequence number in the PAN field. 

 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter 
the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the 
first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If 
your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 
then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with 
the depository or in the company records for your folio in 
dd/mm/yyyy format 



Bank 
Account 
Number 
(DBD) 

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat 
account with the depository or in the company records for your 
folio. 

 Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order 
to Login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company then please enter the member-id / folio number 
in the Bank Account Number details field. 

g. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
h. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the 

Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat 
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders 
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible 
to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

i. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used 
only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

j. Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. EASUN CAPITAL 
MARKETS LIMITED on which you choose to vote. 

k. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and 
against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES 
or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

l. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details. 

m. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on 
“SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

n. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed 
to modify your vote. 

o. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click 
here to print” option on the Voting page. 

p. If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the 
User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as prompted by the system. 

(vii)  Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians : 
 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) 

and Custodians are required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com 
and register themselves as Corporates. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of 
the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user 
which should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish 
to vote on. 

 The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

  



 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

a. The procedure for attending the meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
Shareholders can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before 
and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. 

b. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN 
of Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions 
mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

c. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to 
attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

d. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / Ipads 
for better experience. 

e. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with 
a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

f. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video 
loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind 
of aforesaid glitches. 

g. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during 
the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request 
in advance at least 02 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com. The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries 
may send their queries in advance 02 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com. These 
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

h. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only 
be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

i. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

j. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available 
during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the 
meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during 
the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE 
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES: 

a. For Physical Shareholders – please provide necessary details like Folio No., 
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), 
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to company at 
swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com /RTA email 
id at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. 

b. For Demat Shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with 
your respective Depository Participant (DP). 

c. For Individual Demat Shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile 
no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory 
while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through depository. 

 



If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the 
CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43. All grievances connected with 
the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th 
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 
(East), Mumbai – 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
call on 022-23058542/43. 

19.Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 
meeting may register themselves as a speaker may send their request 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or 
cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com latest by 5:00 P.M. (IST) on Friday, September 
29, 2023. 

20.Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only 
be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

21.When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / 
she does not respond, the next speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, 
all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video/ camera 
along with good internet speed.  

22.The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and 
number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

23.Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact CDSL 
on https://www.evotingindia.com under the help section or write to the 
undersigned at the registered office address of the Company or email ID: 
swati@salarpuriagroup.com and/or cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com or tel. 033 
4014 5400. 

24.The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the 
paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, i.e., 
Saturday, September 23, 2023. Thus, the facility of e-voting would be 
provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of joint 
holders. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this 
notice for information purpose only.  

25.Mr. Rajan Singh, Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and e-voting at the 
AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later 
than two working days from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing, who 
shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

26.The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on 
the Company’s website http://www.easuncapitalmarkets.com and on the 
website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the stock exchange 
where the shares of the Company are listed viz. The Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Limited and BSE Limited. 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 06-09-2023 
Place: Kolkata 

By the Order of the Board 
For Easun Capital Markets Limited 
 
 
 
Sd/-     
Swati Modi 
Company Secretary 

 

  



 
 
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE  
 
[Additional information of directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the 
41st  Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36 of Listing Regulations] 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN RELATION TO ITEM NO. 2:  

PARTICULARS ANAND PRAKASH 

DIN 00061566 

D.O.B. 15-08-1971 

Date of Appointment 29-09-1994 

Qualification Bachelors in Commerce and Chartered Accountancy 
from ICAI 

Experience (including 
expertise in specific 
functional area) 

Having more than 20 years of experience in the field 
of accounting, taxation, finance and investment 

Present Status of 
directorship in the 
Company 

Non-Executive Director 

Relationship with 
other 

Directors/KMP 

Not related to any Director / Key Managerial 
Personnel, except Mr. Apurva Salarpuria, Non-
Executive Director  

Directorship of other 
Listed Board as on 
date 

1. Mandya Finance Company Limited 

Membership / 
Chairmanship 

of Committees of 
other Listed Boards as 
on date 

1. Mandya Finance Company Limited 

 Member of Audit Committee 
 Member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
 Member of Risk Management Committee 

Shareholding as on 
March 31, 2023 
(including 
shareholding as a 
beneficial owner) 

 NIL  Equity Shares (Includes Shareholding as 
Beneficial Owner) 

 

 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 AND REGULATION 36 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 
2015 
 



Item No. 3 
The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’), at its meeting held on 06-09-2023 
approved the proposed appointment of M/s. Rakesh Ram & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, FRN 325145E, a peer reviewed firm, as the Statutory Auditors in 
place of M/s. V. K. Tulsyan & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, effective from 30-
09-2023 to hold office for a continuous period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 
AGM to be held in 2028 at a remuneration as decided by the Board of Directors of 
the Company based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee in 
consultation with the Auditors, and recommended the same for the approval of 
the Members.  
 
Further, the Board of Directors proposed the appointment of M/s. Rakesh Ram & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, FRN 325145E, based on the recommendation 
of Audit Committee and pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
for a period of five (5) continuous years from the conclusion of this ensuing 41st 
AGM till the conclusion of 46th AGM of the Company, to be held in 2028,  at such 
remuneration as may be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.  
 
M/s. Rakesh Ram & Associates, Chartered Accountants, FRN 325145E are eligible 
to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and hence have given 
their consent to act as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and have confirmed 
that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions 
prescribed under Sections 139 of the Act and are not disqualified for appointment 
under Section 141 and other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules or 
regulations made thereunder.  
 
As confirmed to the Audit Committee, the Auditors have reported their 
independence from the Company according to the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and the ethical requirement 
relevant to the audit.  
 
The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee may alter and 
vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such 
manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors. 
The Committee considered various parameters like capability to serve a diverse 
and complex business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in the 
Company’s operating segments, market standing of the firm, technical knowledge 
etc., and found to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity 
associated with the audit of the financial statements of the Company.  
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.  
 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval. 
 
 

 

 
 
Date: 06-09-2023 
Place: Kolkata 

By the Order of the Board 

For Easun Capital Markets Limited 
                                        
Sd/-  
Swati Modi 
Company Secretary 



BOARD’S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors are pleased to present the FortyFirst (41st) Annual Report together with 
the Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 (Rs. In Lakh) 

PARTICULARS CURRENT 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

(2022-2023) 

PREVIOUS 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

(2021 - 2022) 

Revenue from Operations 
Interest Income 
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 

Sale of Shares 

21.94 
55.41 
13.13 

59.11 
26.71 

- 

Other Income 6.86 49.42 
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance 
Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 

44.64 116.57 

Less: Depreciation & Amortization - - 
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional 
items and Tax Expense  

44.64 116.57 

Less: Finance Costs - - 

Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense  

44.64 116.57 

Add/(less): Exceptional items - - 
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 44.64 116.57 
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 19.89 18.30 

Profit /loss for the year (1) 24.75 98.27 
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) - - 

Total (1+2) 24.75 98.27 
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years - - 
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption 
Reserve  

- - 

Less: Transfer to Reserves - - 

Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - - 
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - - 
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - - 

Balance carried forward 24.75 98.27 
Earning per Equity Share: 

Basic 0.47 1.88 
Diluted 0.47 1.88 
The above figures are extracted from the audited (standalone) financial statements as 

per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Your Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023 in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (the Rules). 

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial 
statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors has been considered in 
preparing these financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value as described in accounting policies regarding financial 
instruments. 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, your Company has recorded a turnover 
of Rs. 90.48 Lakh, achieved a Profit before Tax (PBIT) of Rs. 44.64 Lakh and achieved a 
Profit after Tax (PAT) of Rs. 24.75 Lakh as compared to the PAT of Rs. 98.27 Lakh 



recorded during the previous financial year 2021-2022, thus, recording an EPS of Rs. 
0.47 per share booking a decline of 75% in the EPS. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the 
Reserves for the year under review, except statutory transfer to RBI Reserve Fund in 
accordance with the Regulatory Requirements. 

DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors of your Company, after considering holistically the relevant 
circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for 
the year under review. 

Your Company do not have any amount / shares which is transferred or pending to be 
transferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF). 

MAJOR EVENTS DURING THE YEAR 

A. State of Company’s Affairs

Your Company is mainly into investing in and acquiring and holding shares, stocks,
debentures, bonds, mutual funds and/or other securities issued or guaranteed by
any company constituted or carrying on business in India and/or by any
Government, state, public body or authority. The major revenue of the Company has
been generated by way of carrying out the activity of investment in shares,
securities and mutual funds, i.e., NBFC activities.

B. Change in the Nature of Business

There has been no change in the nature of business activity being carried on by your
Company during the financial year.

C. Material changes and commitment, if any, affecting the financial position of

the company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this

financial statements relate and the date of the report

In pursuance to Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, no material changes
and commitments affecting the financial position of your company has occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this Report.

SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review, there has been no change in the capital structure of your 
Company. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stands at 
Rs. 5,50,00,000 divided into 55,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 5,22,92,090  divided into 
52,29,209 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

BOARD COMPOSITION 

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and 
independent directors to maintain the independence of Board and separate its functions 
of governance and management. 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of your Company is duly constituted under 
the Chairmanship of an Independent Director and comprises of three Independent 
Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and one Whole-Time Director. The Board has an 
appropriate mix of knowledge, wisdom and varied industry experience to guide the 
Company in achieving its objectives in a sustainable manner. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 (6) & (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the executive and non-executive directors of the Company, apart from Independent 
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Anand Prakash, who 
was appointed on September 29, 1994, is liable to retire by rotation, and being eligible, 
seeks re-appointment. The Board recommends his appointment. 



Ms. Pallavi Moonka, who was appointed as CS on December 12, 2018, resigned w.e.f. 
January 7, 2022. Mrs. Swati Modi, was appointed as the CS and Compliance Officer 
w.e.f. 26-12-2022.

Independent Director 

During the year under review, Mr. Amit Kumar Sureka, Mr. Rajesh Lihala and Ms. 
Saileena Sarkar held the office of Independent Directors of the Company in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

All Independent Directors have submitted declarations confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence, as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Independent Directors have also confirmed compliance with the Company’s Code 
of Conduct and the Code of Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the FY 2022-2023. Based on the disclosures received from 
all the independent directors and in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors 
fulfil the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 and are independent of the management. 

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN 

PERFORMANCE, ITS DIRECTORS AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES 

The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates the performance evaluation of the Directors 
including Chairman, individual Directors and its committees. Considering the said 
provisions, the Company has devised the process and the criteria for the performance 
evaluation which has been recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved 
by the Board. 

The Criteria for performance evaluation are as under: 
Attendance at meeting; Participation and Contribution; Responsibility towards 
stakeholders; Contribution in Strategic Planning; Compliance and Governance; 
Participation, Updating of Knowledge; Leadership; Relationships and Communications; 
Resources; Conduct of Meetings. 

Performance Evaluation of Board:- 

Composition and Diversity of Board; Committees of the Board; Board & Committee 
Meetings; Understanding of the Business of the Company and Regulatory environment; 
Contribution to effective corporate governance and transparency in Company’s 
Operation; deliberation / decisions on the Company’s Strategies;  Monitoring and 
implementation of the strategies and the executive management performance and 
quality  of decision making and Board’s Communication with all stakeholders. 

Performance Evaluation of the Board Level Committees:- 

The performance and effectiveness of the Committee; Frequency and duration; Spread 
of talent and diversity in the Committee; Understanding of regulatory environment and 
development; interaction with the Board. 

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO 

INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF 

THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the attributes of 
integrity, expertise and experience as required to be disclosed under Rule 8(5)(iiia) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) as was notified and required under Section 
150(1) of the Act. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPOSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by SEBI. The Ind AS 
are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 



Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied. 

In terms of the provisions of section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 
hereby confirm that: 
a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March,

2023, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments  and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 and
of the profit /loss of the Company for that period;

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records  in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting  fraud
and other irregularities;

d. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;
e. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively; and

f. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

ANNUAL RETURN 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92(3) & Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time to time, copy of the Annual Return can be accessed from 
the following link: http://www.easuncapitalmarkets.com  

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 

Your company does not have any “Material Subsidiary Company” whose income or net 
worth exceeds 10% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively of the 
Company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. 

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 

a. Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/ KMP to the median remuneration of all
employees of the Company for the financial year:

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Particulars Designation Amount Percentage 

Median Remuneration of all 

employees of the Company 

for FY 2022-23 

Whole Time Director 
(WTD)* 

1.20 12.64% 

Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) 

3.28 34.56% 

Company Secretary 
(CS) 

5.01 52.79% 

The percentage increase in 

median remuneration of 

employees in the Financial 
Year  

Whole Time Director NIL - 
Chief Financial Officer NIL - 
Company Secretary NIL - 

The number of permanent 

employees on rolls of 

Company as on March 31, 

2023 

Whole Time Director 

Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 

Total 3 Employees 



Note: The ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is based on remuneration paid 

during the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023. The remuneration paid is as per 

the terms of agreement, mutually agreed upon and as permissible under the Act or 

Statute. 

The Company does not pay any remuneration to any other Director except Whole Time 

Director as specified above. Further, no stock option has been issued by the Company to 

any of its Directors. 

b. Information pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, no employee of the Company draws remuneration in excess of the limits as set
out in the said rules.

c. Employee Benefits:

Provision of the Gratuity Act is not applicable to the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GUARANTEES GIVEN OR INVESTMENTS MADE 

UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The disclosure requirements as specified under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 is 
not applicable as the Company is engaged in the business of NBFC activities, viz: 
investment in shares, mutual funds and other securities during the year under review. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties under section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is attached and furnished in Form AOC-2 as annexed to this 
report as Annexure-1.  

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, 
compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in Regulations 17, 
17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V does not apply to the 
Company. However, the Company has prepared policy on materiality of related party 
transactions and on dealing with related party transactions which can accessed from the 
website of the Company at www.easuncapitalmarkets.com 

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors meets at least once in every quarter and also as and when 
required. During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Board met Nine (9) 
times, i.e., on April 8, 2022; May 17, 2022; June 23, 2022; July 5, 2022; August 10, 
2022; August 31, 2022; November 14, 2022; January 10, 2023 and February 3, 2023. 
The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed 
gap allowed by Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India providing relaxation of time gap 
between Board/ Audit Committee meetings due to the CoVID-19 pandemic. 

None of the Directors of the Company is member of more than 10 Board level 
committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across companies in which he/she 
is a director. 

Name of 

the 

Director# 

Category Sharehol

ding as 

on March 

31, 2023 

Attendance 

of meetings 

during 

2022-2023 

No. of Directorships and 

Committee Memberships/ 

Chairmanships 



Board 

Meetin

g 

Last 

AGM 

Other 

Directo

r 

ships* 

Committe

e Member 

ship 

Committe

e 

Chairman 

ship 

Mr. Amit 
Sureka(1) 

Independen
t Director 

37,500^ 4 Yes 5 8 4 

Mr. Aditya 
Sadani(2) 

Whole Time 
Director 

0 9 Yes 20 5 3 

Mr. Apurva 
Salarpuria(3

)

Chairman - 
Non-
Executive 
Director 

21,08,760^ 9 No 17 9 0 

Mr. Anand 
Prakash(3) 

Non-
Executive 
Director 

0 9 No 16 6 1 

Mr. Rajesh 
Lihala(4) 

Independen
t Director 

0 6 No 5 3 1 

Ms. 
Saileena 
Sarkar(5) 

Woman 
Independen
t Director 

0 6 No 19 6 3 

* Excluding Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.
#None of the Directors are related to each other except Mr. Apurva Salarpuria & Mr. Anand Prakash
(3) Mr. Apurva Salarpuria & Mr. Anand Prakash are Non-executive Directors on the Board of Mandya Finance
Company Limited
(4) Mr. Rajesh Lihala is not a Director in any other listed entity
(4) Ms. Saileena Sarkar is Women Independent Director on board of Mandya Finance Company Limited
^ Direct Holding

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board has 4 (four) committees, namely, the Audit 
Committee, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Composition 

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted an Audit Committee of the 
Board in terms of the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
framed thereunder read with Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. As on 
March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee is composed of the following: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER CATEGORY STATUS 

Mr. Amit Kumar Sureka Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Apurva Salarpuria Non – Executive Director Member 
Mr. Rajesh Lihala Independent Director Member 

All the members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial expertise. The 
Company Secretary, Mrs. Swati Modi, acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

Meetings and Attendance 
The Audit Committee of the Company meets every quarter, inter alia, to review the 
financial results for the previous quarter before the same are approved at Board 
Meetings, pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. During the 
year under review, the Audit Committee met Four (4) times on: May 17, 2022, August 
10, 2022, November 14, 2022 and February 3, 2023. The attendance details of members 
of committee are as under: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER NO. OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

Mr. Amit Kumar Sureka 4 4 

Mr. Apurva Salarpuria 4 4 
Mr. Rajesh Lihala 4 4 

Powers of the Audit Committee 

The powers of the Audit Committee include the following: 



1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference
2. To seek information from any employee
3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice
4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary

Functions of Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee reviews the Reports of the Statutory Auditors periodically and 
discusses their findings. The role of the Audit committee includes the following: 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient
and credible;

2. Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees;

3. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before
submission to the board for approval;

4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements before submission
to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
(i) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013.
(ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
(iii) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial

statements.
(iv) Disclosure of any related party transactions

5. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors
and adequacy of the internal control systems;

6. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

7. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
8. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
9. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature

and scope of audit as well as post – audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

10. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee;

11. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up;
12. Reviewing, the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors;
13. The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following:

i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and result of operation;
ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit

Committee), submitted by the management;
iii. Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the statutory

auditors;
iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Composition 

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted a Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee in terms of the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. As on March 31, 2023, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 
composed of the following: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER CATEGORY STATUS 

Mr. Rajesh Lihala Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Anand Prakash Non – Executive  Director Member 

Mr. Apurva Salarpuria Non – Executive Director Member 
Ms. Saileena Sarkar Women Independent 

Director 
Member 

Meetings and Attendance 



The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet once every year in accordance 
with the requirement of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. During the 
year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Once (1) on: 
January 10, 2023 to review the performance of the Directors and the Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and recommend to the Board the Appointment of Mrs. Swati Modi as 
the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer in place of Smt. Pallavi Moonka. 

The attendance details of members of committee are as under: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER NO. OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

Mr. Rajesh Lihala 1 1 
Mr. Anand Prakash 1 1 

Mr. Apurva Salarpuria 1 1 
Ms. Saileena Sarkar 1 1 

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The roles and responsibilities of the committee include the following: 
1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director.
2. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

3. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of director's and Board's performance and to
carry out the evaluation of every director's performance.

4. Devising a policy on Board diversity.
5. To decide the remuneration of consultants engaged by the Committee.
6. Framing, recommending to the Board and implementing, on behalf of the Board and

on behalf of the Shareholders, policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Persons (KMP) & other Employees, including ESOP, pension right and any other
compensation payment.

7. Considering, approving and recommending to the Board changes in designation and
increase in salary of the Directors, KMP and other employees.

8. Framing the Employees Share Purchase Scheme / Employees Stock Option Scheme
and recommending the same to the Board / shareholders for their approval and
implementing/administering the scheme approved by the shareholders.

As a token of long term commitment and long term vision towards the Company none of 
the directors (excluding Whole Time Director) of the Company receive any sort of 
monetary benefit from the Company, inter-alia, no sitting fees or remuneration is paid 
to other directors except Whole Time Director. 

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE / SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE 

Composition 

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted a Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee in terms of the requirements of Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. As on March 31, 2023, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is composed of 
the following: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER CATEGORY STATUS 

Mr. Amit Kumar Sureka Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Aditya Sadani Whole Time Director Member 

Mr. Rajesh Lihala Independent Director Member 
Ms. Pallavi Moonka acts as the Compliance Officer and the Company has not received 
any shareholders’ complaints during the financial year under review. 

Meetings and Attendance 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once (1) 
on November 14, 2022. The Company has not received any grievances during the 
financial year 2022-2023. The attendance details of members of committee are as 
under: 



NAME OF THE MEMBER NO. OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

Mr. Amit Kumar Sureka 1 1 

Mr. Aditya Sadani 1 1 
Mr. Rajesh Lihala 1 1 

Powers of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
The role of the committee shall, inter-alia, include the following: 
1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including

complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report,
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general
meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect

of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing

the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Composition 

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted a Risk Management 
Committee in terms of the requirements of Regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. As on March 31, 2023, the Risk Management Committee is composed of the 
following: 

NAME OF THE MEMBER CATEGORY STATUS 

Mr. Aditya Sadani Whole Time Director Chairman 
Mr. Apurva Salarpuria Non – Executive Director Member 

Mr. Anand Prakash Non – Executive  Director Member 

Meetings and Attendance 

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met once (1) on 
November 14, 2022 to review the risk management plan. The attendance details of 
members of committee are as under: 
NAME OF THE MEMBER NO. OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

Mr. Aditya Sadani 1 1 
Mr. Apurva Salarpuria 1 1 
Mr. Anand Prakash 1 1 

Powers of the Risk Management Committee 

The role of the Committee is as under: 
1. To Prepare Risk Management Plan, reviewing and monitoring the same on regular

basis.
2. To review critical risks identified.
3. To report key changes in critical risks to the Board.
4. To report critical risks to Audit Committee in detail.
5. To perform such other functions as may be deemed or prescribed fit by the Board.

COMPLIANCE WITH SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your Company/Employer is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace 
for all its employees. To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and 
respect and as mandated under the “The Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013” the Company/Employer takes due care 
for prevention of the sexual harassment of its women employees as and when the 
company employs any women employee. 
During the year under review, the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was re-
constituted in the Group by the Employer held on to redress and deal with any complains 
on sexual harassment with the following members: 



Sl 

No 

NAME OF THE MEMBER POSITION 

1 Mrs. Mandira Mukherjee Chairperson 

2 Ms. Saileena Sarkar Member 
3 Ms. Pallavi Moonka Company Secretary & Member   upto 1/1/23 
4 Mr. Gautam Chakraborty Member 

5 Adv. Aritra Chakraborty External Member (Advocate – Hon’ble Calcutta 
High Court) 

6 Mrs. Swati Modi Company Secretary & Member   w.e.f. 26/12/22 
Further during the year under review, no case of sexual harassment was reported.  Mrs. 
Swati Modi acts as Secretary to the Committee. 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors of the Company met separately on Friday, February 3, 2023 
without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members of the 
management. The Meeting was conducted informally to enable the Independent 
Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs and put forth their 
combined views to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a vigil through which concerned persons [directors, 
employees and business associates] may report unethical behaviour, malpractices, 
wrongful conduct etc., without fear of reprisal. The Company has set up a Direct Touch 
Initiative, under which all directors, employees/ business associates have direct access 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  The Whistle Blower Policy aims to:  
 Allow and encourage stakeholders to bring to the management notice concerns

about unethical behaviour, malpractices, wrongful conduct, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of policies.

 Ensure timely and consistent organizational response.
 Build and strengthen a culture of transparency and trust.
 Provide protection against victimization.

The above mechanism has been appropriately communicated. The Company Secretary of 
the Company ensures compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable. It was also 
confirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

AUDITORS 

Statutory Auditors 

M/s. V. K. Tulsyan & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 
326740E), having office at “Aradhana”, P-2, New C.I.T Road, Unit #210, Kolkata – 700 
073, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 39th Annual 
General Meeting held on September 20, 2021 to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years from the conclusion of the 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) until 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the Financial Year 2025-2026. 
However the Auditors have communicated their intentions to discontinue the assignment 
w.e.f. 30-09-2023. The Board have approached M/s Rakesh Ram & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, FRN 325145E, a peer reviewed firm, who have agreed to accept
the assignment. The Board propose the Auditors be changed accordingly.

NBFC Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions 2008: In view of the directions 
issued by Reserve Bank of India, the Auditors have given their report to the above effect 
which is self-explanatory. 

Secretarial Auditor 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed Mr. Rajan 
Singh, Company Secretary in Practice, as the Secretarial Auditor and his report in Form 

MR-3 is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure - 2. 



The Company has taken a certificate as laid down under sec 92(2) of the Companies Act 
2013 and Rule 11(2) of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 from 
Mr. Rajan Singh, Practising Company Secretary. 

Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remark in the Auditor’s Reports and 

Secretarial Audit Report 

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the Auditors in their 
Reports to the Financial Statements or by the Secretarial Auditor in his Secretarial Audit 
Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

Cost Audit and Cost Records 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the 
business carried out by the Company. 

Internal Audit 

M/s Rakesh Ram & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were conducting the Internal 
Audit of the Company. The report thereof is placed before the Audit Committee for 
evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE, ETC 

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of Energy and 
Technology Absorption are not applicable to company under the year under review and 
expenditure on Research and Development and Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo 
stands “NIL” for the year under review. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

There has been no significant and material order(s), passed by any Regulator(s) or 
Court(s) or Tribunal(s), impacting the going concern status of the Company’s operations. 
No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the financial 
year till the date of this Report which affects the financial position of the Company for 
the reporting period. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR) 

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms a part of this Annual Report and 
is enclosed herewith as Annexure-3. 

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards)  Rules, 2015. All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) 
till the financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors has been 
considered in preparing these financial statements. The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which 
have been measured at fair value as described in accounting policies regarding financial 
instruments. 

Estimates 

The Company has exercised the option to measure investment in equity instruments, not 
held for trading at FVTOCI in accordance with Ind AS 109. It has exercised this 
irrevocable option for its class of unquoted equity shares. The option renders the equity 
instruments elected to be measured at FVTOCI non-recyclable to Statement of Profit & 
Loss. 

DEPOSITS 

Your company has not accepted any public deposit during the financial year under 
review. 



LISTING  

The equity shares of your Company continued to be listed on The Calcutta Stock 
Exchange Limited (CSE) and BSE Limited. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

Corporate Social Responsibility is the continuing commitment by the business to behave 
ethically and contribute to economic development while improving the quality of life of 
the workforce and their families as well as of the local community and society at large. 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company is not 
required to constitute a CSR committee and enact thereon, i.e., CSR Provision is not 
applicable. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY ICSI 
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable 
provisions of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and 
General Meetings (SS-2) along with Secretarial Standards on Report of the Board of 
Directors (SS-4) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015 

1. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

A) Financial Results:

 Shareholders were intimated through the press about the quarterly performance
and financial results of the Company. The quarterly, half-yearly and the annual
financial results are published in national and regional dailies i.e. The Times of
India (National) in English Language and Ei Samay (Regional) in Bengali
Language, except for the last quarter. The financial results for the Quarter and
year ended as on 31/3/2023 was published in The Echo of India (English)  and
Aarthik Lipi (regional) in Bengali language.

 The Company’s results and other corporate announcements are promptly sent to
the stock exchange i.e. BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
(CSE) with which the shares of the Company are listed.

 The financial results and other relevant information are also displayed on the
website of the Company i.e. http://easuncapitalmarkets.com/

B) Other information:

The Company has email address swati@salarpuriagroup.com and 
cs.sgroup2013@gmail.com to interface with the investors. 

2. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) Annual General Meeting

The Forty First (41st) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held on
Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 1.00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) /
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”).

b) Financial Year

The Financial Year of the Company is from 1st April to 31st March
Financial Calendar [Current Financial Year 

2023-24] 

Tentative Date / 

Schedule 

First Quarter Financial Results (June 30) By 14th day of August 2023 
(actual date 10/8/23) 

Second Quarter Financial Results (September 30) By 14th day of November 
2023 

Third Quarter Financial Results (December 31) By 14th day of February 
2024 

Fourth Quarter & Annual Audited Financial Results 
of the current Financial Year (March 31) 

By end of May 2024 

Date of Book Closure: The books will be closed for the Annual General Meeting from 
Monday, September 25, 2023 to Saturday, September 30, 2023 (both days inclusive). 

c) Listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges



 The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata – 700 001 [CSE
Scrip Code: 10015065]

 BSE Limited, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -400001, India [BSE Scrip Code:
542906]

 The Company has paid the annual listing fees to the aforesaid Stock Exchanges.

d) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Niche Technologies Private Limited (SEBI Registration Number : INR000003290) having
its office at 3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata -  700 017, West
Bengal provide for processing the transfers, transmission, sub-division, consolidation,
splitting of shares, etc. and to process the Members’ requests for dematerialization and /
or re-materialization of shares.

e) Distribution of Shareholding as at March 31, 2023

 According to Category of Holding:

Shareholders 

As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2022 

No. of 

Shares 
% 

No. of 

Shares 
% 

Promoters 2576450 49.27 2576450 49.27 

Financial Institutions - - - - 

Private Corporate 
Bodies (Excluding 
Promoters) 

1473631 28.18 2025094 38.73 

Public 1089128 22.55 627665 12.00 

Total 52,29,209 100.00 52,29,209 100.00 

 According to Number of Shares held:

Shareholding 

Range 

No. of 

shareholder

s  

% of 

Shareholders 

No. of 

shares 

% of 

Shareholding 

1-500 256 71.11 29,419 0.5626 
501-1,000 16 4.44 14,606 0.2793 
1,001-5,000 13 3.61 38,307 0.7326 

5,001-10,000 11 3.06 1,02,019 1.9509 
10,001 -
50,000 

44 12.22 11,31,998 21.6476 

50,001-
1,00,000 

14 3.89 11,50,702 22.0053 

1,00,001 and 
above 

6 1.67 27,62,158 52.8517 

Total 338 100.00 52,29,209 100.0000 

f) Dematerialization of shares: The Company’ shares are listed on BSE Limited and
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. The shares of the Company are in compulsory
dematerialized segment and are admitted with both the Depositories i.e. National
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL).

No. of Shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st March, 

2023 are as under: 

Particulars No. of Shares % to total Shares 

Physical 6,30,846 12.06 

Demat (Electronic) 

NSDL 7,37,422 14.10 

CDSL 38,60,941 73.83 

TOTAL 52,29,209 100.00 

SEBI has mandated that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the Company/ 



Registrar and Share Transfer Agent has stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of 
transfer of shares in physical form. Members holding shares in physical form are 
advised to avail of the facility of Dematerialization. The ISIN of the Company is 
INE771C01014. 

g) General Body Meetings

The location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during the preceding three
years are given below:

Year Venue Day & Date Time 

2021-22 Deemed Venue : 

Registered Office 

Thursday, September 29, 
2022 

12:30 P.M. 

2020-21 Deemed Venue : 

Registered Office 

Monday, September 20, 
2021 

12:30 P.M. 

2019-20 Registered Office: 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 
3rd Floor, Bowbazar, 
Kolkata-700072 

Wednesday, September 
30, 2020 

11:30 A.M. 

h) Postal Ballots

During the financial year 2022-23, there were no ordinary or special resolutions passed
by the members through Postal Ballot. No resolutions were required to be passed as
Special Resolution or by special majority or through postal ballot in the FY 2020-2021
and FY 2021-2022.

i) Details of Non-Compliances

The Company has complied with the compliances of the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any
statutory authority on matters related to Company / Capital Markets during the last
three years.

j) Market Price Data

MONTH 
OPEN 

PRICE 

HIGH 

PRICE 
LOW PRICE 

CLOSE 

PRICE 

NO.OF 

SHARES 

April - 22 30.65 30.65 25.05 25.05 869 
May-22 23.80 24.30 22.80 22.80 26055 
Jun-22 22.40 33.80 22 33.80 108228 

Jul-22 33.80 33.80 32.25 33.50 5520 
Aug-22 31.85 33.50 30.40 30.40 20902 

Sep-22 31 35.70 28.20 31.05 219878 
Oct-22 31.05 32 31.05 32 951 
Nov-22 32 40.95 32 40.95 237084 

Dec-22 40.90 51 40.90 49 273270 
Jan-23 49 51.45 48 48 368034 
Feb-23 48 55 48 55 103397 
Mar-23 57.60 57.60 52.25 54 34510 

k) Certification from Company Secretary in Practice

Mr. Rajan Singh, Company Secretary in whole-time practice, has issued a certificate as
required under the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of the directors on the
Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as director of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed as Annexure-4.

DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Whole-Time Director has enclosed a duly signed declaration stating that the 
members of board of directors and senior management personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior management. The 
declaration is enclosed as Annexure-5. 

RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (RBI) RESERVE FUND 



In terms of Notification No. RBI/2014-15/299 dated 10.11.2014 issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India, provision for contingency have been provided Rs. 86,469 on Standard 
Assets of Rs. 355,11,000 on the outstanding balance as on 31.03.2023. During the year 
under review, a sum of Rs. 4,95,500 (Previous year Rs. 18,04,000) is transferred to RBI 
Reserve Fund under section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 

ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

During the year under review, there is no application or proceeding pending under the 
Insolvency & Bankruptcy code, 2016 against the company. 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE 

TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF 

The Company has not obtained loan from Banks or Financial Institutions and hence, the 
requirement of valuation does not arise.  

APPRECIATION 

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation for the assistance, support and guidance 
provided by Government Authorities, Bankers, investors, financial institution and 
shareholders for their consistent support to the company. The Directors also commend 
the continuing commitment and dedication of the employees at all levels which has been 
critical for the Company’s growth. The Directors look forward for their continuing support 
in future. 

Date: 06-09-2023 

Place: Kolkata 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

Sd/- 
Aditya Sadani 

Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 09023418 

Sd/- 
Apurva Salarpuria 

   Director 
DIN: 00058357 

Annexure-1 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso 

thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 



c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / 

transaction 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the value, if any 

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 

f) Date of approval by the Board 

g) Amount paid as advances, if any 

h) Date on which the special resolution was 

passed in General meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

Refer Note No. 30 of the 

Financial Statements 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the value, if any 

e) Date of approval by the Board 

f) Amount paid as advances, if any 

Date: 06-09-2023 

Place: Kolkata 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

Sd/- 
Aditya Sadani 

Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 09023418 

Sd/- 
Apurva Salarpuria 

   Director 
DIN: 00058357 

NIL 



Annexure-2 

FORM MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN:  L51109WB1982PLC034938 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 
3rd Floor, Bowbazar, 
Kolkata-700 072, 
West Bengal 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by EASUN CAPITAL 

MARKETS LIMITED  [CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938] (hereinafter called the 
“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion hereon.  

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

The Company is an "Investment Company" engaged in the business of Non-Banking 
Financial Institution (Non deposit accepting Company) as defined under Section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
according to the provisions of: 

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under, as
applicable;

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the results made
there under;

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; [Not applicable during the

Audit Period]

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable during the Audit

Period]

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option Scheme
and Employees Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999; [Not applicable

during the Audit Period]



(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not applicable during the Audit Period]

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable during the Audit Period]

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; [Not applicable during the Audit Period]

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

6) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

I further report that having regarded to the compliance system prevailing in the 
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance 
thereof, on test-checks basis, the Company has complied with the laws applicable 
specifically to the Company as represented by the Management. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following: 

1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

2) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with The Calcutta Stock
Exchange Ltd & BSE Limited. The Company is generally regular in giving
intimations under various clauses of the Listing Agreement;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no 
change in the composition of the Board Directors that took place during the period 
under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor an ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

On the basis of information provided, I further report that during the audit period 
there were no instances of: 
(i) Public /Right/ Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/ sweat equity, etc.
(ii) Redemption buy-back of securities.
(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the

Companies Act, 2013.
(iv) Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc.
(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Konnagar 
Date: 05-09-2023 
UDIN: F010541E000943583 

RAJAN SINGH & CO. 

(Practising Company Secretaries) 

Unique Code-S2022WB839700 

Sd/- 

CS Rajan Singh 

Proprietor 

Membership Number-F10541 

COP-13599 



ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To 
The Members 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN:  L51109WB1982PLC034938 
7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 
3rd Floor, Bowbazar, 
Kolkata-700 072, 
West Bengal 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Statutory and other records are the responsibility of the
management of the company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
records. I believe that the processes and practices I have followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the company.

4. The Company was the following system of obtaining reports from other departments
to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as
informed to us.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Konnagar 
Date: 05-09-2023 
UDIN: F010541E000943583 

RAJAN SINGH & CO. 
(Practising Company Secretaries) 

Unique Code-S2022WB839700 

Sd/- 
CS Rajan Singh 

Proprietor 
Membership Number-F10541 

COP-13599 



Annexure-3 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR) 

OVERVIEW 

Easun Capital Markets Limited is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-
Systematically Important Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC and offers and engaged in the 
business of Investment in shares and securities of listed and unlisted entities and 
providing of loan and advance to SME. The management has well-perceived and 
deliberated on various factors within the limits set by the Company’s competitive 
position as discussed in this report. 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

India entered FY2023 amidst uncertain macroeconomic environment. Global growth 
slowed in 2022 to 3.2% more than 1 percentage point weaker than expected, mainly 
weighed down by Russia’s war of aggression in Ukraine .Global growth has stabilized 
towards the end of the year but the improvement is fragile. Despite continuing the global 
uncertainties Indian economy has fared better than previous years. The Indian economy 
expanded 4.4% year on year in the three months to December of 2022. 

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) revised India's growth forecast for FY2024 to 
5.9% from its previous estimate of 6.1%, citing a slowdown in domestic consumption 
and challenging external conditions. Additionally, the IMF reduced India's growth 
forecast for FY2025 by 50 basis points to 6.3%. Despite these downward revisions, India 
have potential to maintain its position as one of the fastest-growing major global 
economy. The Indian economy has demonstrated remarkable resilience in the face of the 
deteriorating global situation due to strong macroeconomic fundamentals. Steps to 
promote ease of doing business, skilled manpower, and presence of natural resources, 
liberal FDI policies, huge domestic market and prospects of healthy GDP growth have 
made India an attractive destination for foreign investors. Thus, going forward, India is 
expected to see relatively stronger growth. 

Recent legal changes 
Scale Based Regulation :   SBR has prescribed to increase the New Owned Fund of all 
NBFCs from the existing Rs. 2.00 Crores to Rs. 10.00 Crores by march, 2027 in a 2 
phase manner.  

Recognition of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs): With reference to the Master Circular 
on Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification, and Provisioning 
pertaining to Advances (IRACP norms) dated October 1, 2021, and the subsequent 
communication issued by the Reserve Bank of India ‘Prudential norms on Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification, and Provisioning vide circular 
DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22’ dated November 12, 2021, it was clarified that 
loan accounts classified as NPAs may be upgraded as ‘standard’ assets only if entire 
arrears of interest and principal are paid by the borrower. With regard to this, the RBI in 
its circular DOR.STR.REC.85/21.04.048/2021- 22 dated February 15, 2022, clarified that 
“NBFCs shall have time till September 30, 2022, to put in place the necessary systems to 
implement this provision. All other instructions of the Circular shall continue to be 
applicable as per the timelines specified therein.” This further emphasizes the 
importance of credit repayment discipline for all the borrowers of the financial inclusion 
landscape. 

Data Submission to Credit Information Companies (CICs):  According to the letter 
DOR.SIG. FIN.No./20.16.042/2022-23 dated June 7, 2022, the Reserve Bank of India 
had notified the modifications in the data format for furnishing of customer information 
to Credit Information Companies. The necessary changes in the UCRF (Uniform Credit 
Reporting Format) for the MFI segment were incorporated by the CICs and 
communicated to the CIs. Further, an additional notification with effect from October 1, 
2022, specified that erroneous or non-submission of data in the modified fields will lead 
to the rejection of the records by the CICs. 



Indian economic scenario 

In India, retail inflation, as indicated by the Consumer Price Index, attained an eight-
year peak in April 2022 and consistently exceeded the upper tolerance threshold of 6.0% 
set by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for a significant portion of the year. The Monetary 
Policy Committee (MPC) of the RBI took a unanimous decision during an off-cycle 
meeting in May 2022 to increase the repo rate by 40 basis points. Subsequently, 
additional rate hikes were implemented, culminating in the sixth continuous rate hike 
since May 2022. In aggregate, the repo rate was raised by 250 basis points during the 
fiscal year 2023, reaching a level of 6.5%. Meanwhile, the reverse repo rate remained 
unchanged at 3.35%. Consequently, retail inflation subsided to a 15-month low of 
5.66% in March 2023. In April 2023, the MPC maintained the repo rate at 6.5% while 
affirming its commitment to a gradual withdrawal of accommodative measures. 

India's GDP experienced double-digit growth of 13.1% in Q1FY2023 partially due to the 
base effect. However, growth slowed down in Q2FY2023 and Q3FY2023, reaching 6.2% 
and 4.5% respectively, due to high inflation and weakening demand. In Q4FY2023, 
growth bounced back to 6.1%, pushing the overall growth rate to 7.2% for FY2023. 
India continues to be one of the fastest growing major economies globally in FY2023. 

Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) are an integral part of the country’s financial 
system, catering to a large market of niche customers, and have emerged as one of the 
major purveyors of retail and SME credit in India. It is a heterogeneous group of 
institutions (other than commercial and co-operative banks) performing financial 
intermediation in a variety of ways, such as accepting deposits, making loans and 
advances, providing leasing/hire purchase services, among others. NBFCs serve an 
important role in developing countries, such as India, where access to bank finance 
continues to be a challenge for a large chunk of the population and businesses. 
Nonbanking financial institutions, including NBFCs in India, serve market segments to 
which commercial banks do not offer services because of higher risk and lower returns. 
Because of their inherent characteristics, nonbanking financial institutions are an 
indispensable part of an economy’s financial sector. 

Your company’s position 

The Company is mainly into investing in and acquiring and holding shares, stocks, 
debentures, bonds, mutual funds and/or other securities issued or guaranteed by any 
company constituted or carrying on business in India and/or by any Government, state, 
public body or authority. 

A trusted and customer-centric, one-stop financial services provider, the Company caters 
to the diverse needs of corporate customers, across various areas of business. Our 
Company is focused only on its main line of business of investment and financing. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

Opportunities 

 Positive long-term economic outlook will lead to opportunity for financial services
 Growing Financial Services industry's share of wallet for disposable income
 Regulatory reforms would aid greater participation by all class of investors
 Leveraging technology to enable best practices and processes
 Corporates looking at consolidation / acquisitions / restructuring opens out
opportunities for the corporate advisory business

Threats 

 Execution risk
 Short term economic slowdown impacting investor sentiments and business activities
 Slowdown in global liquidity flows
 Increased intensity of competition from local and global players
 Market trends making other assets relatively attractive as investment avenues

Strengths 

 Strong Client Base



The Company enjoys a very strong and loyal customer base which has shown un-
wavering loyalty time and again. The company has been able to leverage its base to 
grow its businesses, build relationships and attract and retain talented individuals.  
 Experienced top management

The promoters, are professionally qualified persons with gamut of experience each in the
financial services industry. The top management team comprises qualified and
experienced professionals, with a successful track record. The company believes that its
management's entrepreneurial spirit, strong technical expertise, leadership skills, insight
into the market and customer needs provide it with a competitive strength, which will
help to implement its business strategies.

 Strong risk management

Risk exposure is monitored and controlled through a robust financial, credit, operational,
compliance and legal reporting systems. Risk management department analyses this
data in conjunction with the company’s risk management policies and takes appropriate
action where necessary to minimize risk.

 Financial prudence
The Company’s operating margins continue to remain stable despite the fluctuations in
market volumes and revenues due to our robust business model that can withstand the
cyclical fluctuations in business volumes and simultaneously capture the opportunities
provided by the structural growth of India.

SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT–WISE PERFORMANCE 

The company is primarily engaged in the single business of Financing and Investment. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company’s senior 
management oversees the management of these risks and is supported by professionals 
who advises on financial risks and assist in preparing the appropriate financial risk 
governance framework for the Company. The Board Level Committees viz. Audit 
Committee and Risk Management Committee oversee risk management policies and 
procedures.  It reviews credit and operational risks and investment strategy and other 
risks like interest rate risk and liquidity risk. It provides assurance to the Company’s 
senior management that the Company’s financial  risk activities are  governed by 
appropriate policies  and procedures and that financial  risks are  identified, measured 
and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies  and risk objectives. It is the 
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes can be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of 
these risks which are summarized under Note No. 41(C) of the attached Financial 
Statements. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Management continuously reviews the Internal Control Systems and procedures for 
the efficient conduct of the Company's business. The Company adheres to the prescribed 
guidelines with respect to the transactions, financial reporting and ensures that all its 
assets are safeguarded and protected against losses. Internal Control System are 
implemented in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI to 
safeguard the Company's assets from loss or damage, to keep a constant check on the 
cost structure, to prevent revenue leakages, to provide adequate financial and 
accounting controls and implement accounting standards. 

M/s Rakesh Ram & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have conducted the Internal 
Audit of the Company. The report thereof is placed before the Audit Committee for 
evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

The Compliance Officer of the Company is designated as the Chief Investor Relations 
Officer (“CIRO”) to ensure that fairness and transparency is maintained while dealing 
with unpublished price sensitive information. 



Your Board is of the opinion that the Internal Financial Controls, affecting the Financial 
Statements of your Company are adequate and are operating effectively. 

OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY 

On India’s 75th Independence Day, our Honourable Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi 
introduced the concept of “Amrit Kaal” or “The Era of Elixir” to the nation. Amrit Kaal 
represents the Prime Minister’s vision for a “New India” by 2047, which aims to fulfil 
the nation’s aspirations. The vision encompasses rapid and profitable economic growth, 
improved living conditions for all citizens, advancements in infrastructure and 
technology, and restoring global confidence in India. 

India’s goal of attaining high-income status by 2047 requires inclusive growth that 
benefits the entire population. Reforms focused on growth need to be accompanied by 
the creation of quality jobs that keep up with the influx of new entrants into the labour 
market. Additionally, efforts will be made to address gaps in economic participation, 
including promoting greater female workforce participation. The NBFC sector will 
definitely enjoy the percolated effect of the prospect. Your Directors are optimistic that it 
shall also translate into a better performance vis-à-vis the year gone by for most of the 
leading financial services institutions including NBFCs. 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED  

Business landscape across the world is marked by fast evolving dynamics. These 
demand agile responses while keeping the long term focus intact. Your Company is led 
by highly experienced and successful business leaders with proven track record of 
delivering sustainable growth in demanding business environment. As of March 31, 
2023, your Company has complied with requirement of KMP and Directors during the 
year and other statutes to the extent applicable with a robust team competing on the 
strength of our people, all of us are bonded together by core values of Pride, Integrity, 
Discipline and Ambition. We thrive in this climate of ‘Right People for Right Culture’. Your 
Company has consciously built an entrepreneurial and empowering culture of ‘Results, 
Not Reasons’. Our culture emphasises on having a workforce that is diverse, agile, eager 
to learn and driven to succeed. We have modelled ourselves as a learning organization -
by focusing on ‘Stretch - Learn and Grow’ with Theme Respect for all with parameters 
like Capacity Building performance management. 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS AND FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

An analysis of key analytical ratios have been made in Note 43 of the attached Financial 
Statements including the % of variance of such ratios with respect to ratios of the 
previous financial year as at March 31, 2023. As outlined, there is not material variance 
in the Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) and Tier I CRAR. However, there is a 
significant increase of 700% in the Current Tier II CRAR (FY 2022-23) with reference to 
the previous year Tier II CRAR (FY 2021-22) due to fresh Loans given by the Company. 

We strive to achieve market leadership in scale and profitability, wherever we compete. 

Date: 06-09-2023 
Place: Kolkata 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

Sd/- 
Aditya Sadani 

Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 09023418 

Sd/- 
Apurva Salarpuria 

   Director 
DIN: 00058357 



Annexure-4 

CERTIFICATION OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To 
The Members 
EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN:  L51109WB1982PLC034938 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 
3rd Floor, Bowbazar, 
Kolkata-700 072, 
West Bengal 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED [CIN: 

L51109WB1982PLC034938] and having registered office at 7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 
3rd Floor, Bowbazar, Kolkata-700 072 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications 
[including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in] as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below 
for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1 APURVA SALARPURIA 00058357 07/03/2008 
2 ANAND PRAKASH 00061566 29/09/1994 
3 RAJESH LIHALA 00282891 30/06/2005 
4 SAILEENA SARKAR 06963882 30/09/2014 

5 AMIT KUMAR SUREKA 07826070 07/07/2021 
6 ADITYA SADANI 09023418 16/06/2021 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the 
Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Konnagar 
Date: 05-09-2022 
UDIN: F010541E000943583 

RAJAN SINGH & CO. 

Practising Company Secretaries 

Unique Code-S2022WB839700 

Sd/- 
CS Rajan Singh 

Proprietor 

Membership Number-F10541 

COP-13599 



Annexure-5 

DECLARATION BY WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

All Directors and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed 

compliance with the Code of Conduct of board of directors and senior 

management for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

Date: 06-09-2023 

Place: Kolkata 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

Sd/- 
Aditya Sadani 

Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 09023418 



V. K. Tulsyan & Co. LLP 
Charterad 

INDEPENDENT AUDlTOR'S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LI.MITEO 
Report on tlte audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

We haveaudlted the accompanyi!1jl'. Financial Statements of EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED ("the Company''), 
whirh rnmprls~ the ilainnte !ihut n at 31.t M~u,h, 20:?!), ~11!.1 lh~ siutcnmnr Ill' Prl'lflr lliVI In•~. th"" 1·,.~1, Mvw 
S.awm~m ft.1r ttle ysar tl'ten ended, and a summar1 ot significant ac:r.ountina policies and other explanato.ry 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the •.aforesaid 
Financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a tru!'! and. fair 
view in (X)l1fonnily with lhP ;,rrn11ntln5 1,rh1clplt, IJwll.,, ally .. ~~uµtod In lndlo, of the lt~te of effa1u .c,f tile 
Company as at 31st Mardi, 2023, aud Its Profit and Its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basisfor Op1nkm 

We conducted our audil in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standuds are further described 111 the .Auditor's 
K€~pon~rbllilies tor the A4d1t of the Financi;il Statements section of our report, We ~re ir1dependent of tbe 
Company in accordance wfth the Code of E.thics issued by the. Institute of Charte.red Accountants of India toge.th er 
with tl)e ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the proyisions of 
the Companies Act, lUU and tl1e Rules lh~1,;umJer, .and we have fulfilled our othe.r ethical responsibilities in 
acwrdance with these reljuirement~ and thr Code of Ethics, We believe thM thP ;1111iit NirlNltl' w'1 have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriotc to prnvidfl Ahn.ii~ for m,r (1plnicm. 

lnformarldfl utlier than the l'lnoncial Statement and Aud/t!)rs. Rep!)rt Thereon 

The Company's Boord of Directors is responsible for the other Information, ThP oth;,r lnfmmatthn rompri1:in thii 
information i~cluded in the, Board's Report including Annexutes to Board's Report, and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon, 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclu.sion thereon, · 

In conn.ection with our audit,of the Financial Statement, our responsibility is to read'the other lnfonmation and, in 
duiug MJ, tutlsider whether the other mformation is materially inconsistent with the financial Statements or our 
knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based On the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are req1Jired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, 



Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The. Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (''the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and faitvlew of the 
financial position, finandal performance and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the aci:oimting 
ptinciples generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section .133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance ofadequate acco1.mting reCQrds in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing .and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the ;,ccounth;ig records, 
releva.nt to the. preparation and. presentation of the Financial Statements that give a tru.e .and fair view ana are 
frae from material misstatement, Whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial• reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility Jar the Audit of Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and ta issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In 
.accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arisli! from 
fraud .or error and are consld.ered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financialstatements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. Wf'. also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient 
and appropriate ta provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are · 
appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, ;2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related dlsclos(lres made by management. 



• Concl.ude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit eviqence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a. material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to. cease to continue as a going concern. 

• E\raluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whetherthe financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that.achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethic:al 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safE;!guards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the order"), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub- section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure -
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Order to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) In nur nrinion, proper books of account~ as required by law have t,.,1:,1 kepl by the company so far as 
dppear, from our examinntinn nt those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement deaJt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from .being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separi)te Report in 
"Annexure -B"; and 



g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to th.e best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31st March 2023 which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contract for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Manaeement has represented that, to the l:!e~t of its knowl~rltw rl!ld lwli!'r, nil f1wl~ (whlrh 
are material either Individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any other person .or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries''), with the uncterstanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or inctirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever hy or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Benefici<tries"l or provide any guArnntPf'. ~Pr11rity nr th@ liklii on b11half Gf tho 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(IJ) Thlil Milni1gem0nt has ropra,cntcd, that, te the be3t of it, ~11uwletlge dlltl lJi;lh:!f, IIU funds (WhlCh 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company fr.om any 
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or inctirectly, lend. or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Llltimati ~0n0liciaries; 

(t) Bacud on the ouellt f')1'0cedures U,al liave 1.Jeie11 wt1~ltler11i,l f!illSOmible .ahci ~t\l\f/\~r,ate m the 
cltt:11m~1~nees, nothing hiils ~ome to ovr notirP thnt hns rmisPrl ,is to i,flitvt thilt th11 rnprm,n11rn1inr1 1, 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided und~r (a) and {b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. ThG company has neither declared nor paid a11y dividend during Ll1tJ fln~rrdal year. Hence compliance 
in accon;lance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1.) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 
arrnuntine software which has a feature of recording nudit trail (edit log) facility i~ dµµliLd!JI!! LU the 
Company with effect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule ll(g) of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

For V,K.TULSYAN & CO LLP / _ 
CharterM Accountants /·/> <,~;:\ 
F~

·r Reg No · 326740Jc i ::·, • . 1,·\ 
. ·. •· • • , _, ( ::t. r t?}!<(.:t~ ;·::~; 'I 

, i .. l;;:•~l..:,6740E *) 
--- t(), _/4 IP . . - ,1 Ravmdra Kumar Sarraf "'"'1Aco:i;';/ 

Partner · • · -

Membership No. 300785 
"ARADHANA" P-2, New CIT Road ,Unit No #210, 
Kolkata - 700073 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 291"day of May'2023 
UDIN:-23300785BGTVJH4398. 



Annexure A to the INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph l of the section on "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" 
of our report of even date) 
On t.he Basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanation given to us, we state that: 

(i) (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The company has no intangible assets. Hence, comments on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the 
Order does not arise .. 

(b) As explained to us, Property, Plant.and Equipment, according to the practice of the company, 
have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. According to th.e 
information given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

( c) The company does not own any immovable property. Hence, comments on clause 3(i)( c) of 
the Order does not arise. 

Cd) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued its 
PrQperty, Plant and Equipment during the financial year2022-23. 

(e) As per the information provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The company has no inventory. Hence, comments on clause 3(ii) ofthe Order does not.arise. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees., in 
aggregl'!te, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
during any point of time of th.e year. Hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order ls not 
applicable. 

(iii) (a) (B) The Company has granted Loans to parties other thAn Subsidiary, Joint .Ventures & 
Assudal<;;s <luring the financial yeat 2022-23. The details of the same 1s enclosed as per Annexure 
l(A). 

(iv) 

(v) 

(b) The Company has not made any Investments during the financial year 2022s23. 

(f) The Company has not granted Loans repayable on demand to Related Parties during the 
financial year 2022-23. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the. Company has 
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013, wherever 
applicable ,with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security made. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014(as amended) and no such order has been 
passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or 
any court or any other tribunal. So, comment on c}~\!,5i();~E>Q,of the said Order does not arise. 

;,,,':y.;>,.·-·~--(q:)\ 
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(vi) Maintenance of Cost Records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues inclµding Goods and 
Services tax, provident fund, Employee state insurance, Income Tax, sales Tax, Service Tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, Value added tax, cess and any other Statutory dues as 
applicable to the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable were in arrear as at 31 st March, 2023 
for a period ofmore than six months from the date they become payable. 

(b) On th.e basis of information and explanations given to us, no dues of income tax, sales tax .or 
service tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

(viii)According to information and explanations given by the management, the Company does not have 
any transaction relating to earlier years thM hn.~ hc"n smri,nrlered or disdosed as income during the 
yt:ar in the tax assessments under the Income tnx !\ct, 1961 nnd nlso there arc no such pr<;viovsly 
µruecorded income and telate<l a~sets relatine, to <'Mlie,r Y"'·ars which have been recQrded in the 
books of account during the year. 

(ix) (a1 In o,ur opinion the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the 
pa)~11ent of interest to any lender. 

(b) As per the information provided to us, the company is not declared as willful defaulter hy any 
bank, or financial institution or lender. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(h) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(c) Tho oompony docs not have Te1111 Loan from any Bank/Finam::ial iu~liluUvu, Hi.:uci: l\lportint: 
under clause j(ix)(c) of thi:> 01de1 is uol applit:1J.hlt1. 

(11) Tl11; 11,11uvm1y lm~.uol mi~i.:u any fluHlH <111 .~h111, r.-wm lv,.~1~ ,1rn"i1ig the yem. Hlj1wt11t<fJu1'liug 
under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting under clause 
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(t) The company has not raised any loan~ during the year on the pledge of aoourition hold in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies. He11ce reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(x) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(b )Tlw compuny hus not 111adc any preferential al10tmeut 01 pii valti plact::imml of shartls or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence 
rep01iing under clause 3(x)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a).Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view 
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by the officers and 
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 14loft~ Companies Act has been filed byus in 
Fo1111 ADT-4as.prescribed under rule 13 ofyii~f:,1!111'.e.$~.~udit and Auditors) Rules,.2014with 

the Central Government; /;.c'/vo.!;;,.'it;\r-\ ,Ju~ .. 1 ~2c,,1o¼r) 
1~ , ___ "_.... ~<fl// 
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( c )As the company is an listed company and after considering the other critereas given in the 
clause, in our opinion this claus.e is not applicable on the company for reporting. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xii) of. 
the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the 
related. parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as 
required by the applicable accounting standards to the. extent possible. 

(xiv) (a) As per sectfon 138 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 the company has duly appointed internal 
auditor. 

(b)We have duly considered the reports of the internal auditor. 

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and belief and as per the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with 
him. So, comment on clause 3(xv) of the said Order does not arise. 

(xvi) {a) (a) The company is registered under section 45IA of RBI Act,1934 

(b) As the company is registered under section 45 IA of RBI Act, I 934 with valid certificate .. Hence 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

(c) The company is not CIC as defined in regulation made by RBI. 

(d) As the company is not CIC. Hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the fo1ancial year covered by our audit and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. Hence, comments on clause 3(xvii) of the Order does not 
arise. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing h.is come to our attention , which causes us 
to believe that any mate1·ial uncertainly exists as on the date of the audit report indicating th::tl 
wmpany is .not capable of meeting its liabilities exJsting at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; We however, state 
that this is not an assurance to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, wiU get discharged by the company as and. when they fall dtie. 

(xx) As the criteria mentioned in section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are below the threshold 
limit. Hence, compliance of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
company. 

(xxi) The company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements during the financial 
year 2022-23. Hence, the clause xxi is not applicable to the company. 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
Report on .the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

(Referred to Paragraph (t) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report 
of even date) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EASUN CAPITAL 
MARKETS LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31 st March, 202~ in con,junction with oµr audit oflllll Ind 
AS fmru11aal stalem,mto ofthc CompMy for the year <lmleJ uu lhal dale. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contr.ols 
based on the internal control over financial repo1iini Griteria established by the Co.mpany considering the 
essential components of internal control stnted in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
fhtuds and errors, the accuracy .and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
r~.Jfabk financial infonnation, uo roquirod under the Companie, A"l, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over finftnc.ral 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidanc~ Note on A\1dit of 
lntemal Finmicial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Nole") aml llttl Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(] 0) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal .Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requiremenJ:s and. plan and 
perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated .effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves .performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the riRk that n mnterinl weakness exists, and testing Ull(l 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected deperni on the auditor's judgment, including the ussossmcnt of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for •our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



J\tleaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of rec.ords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reilect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assuranc.e that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's .assets that could have a 
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit oflntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued bytheJnstitute 
of Chartered Accountants oflndia. 

F9r V.K.TULSYAN & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

F~'r · ·lleg. No.: 3. 26740E 
. , __.!? • ~ 

q, 
R . ndra Kumar Sarraf 
Partner 
Membership No. 3007$5 
"ARADHANA" P-2, New CIT Road ,Unit No #210, 
Kolkat11 - 700073 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 29th Day ofMay'2023 
UDIN:- 23300785BGTVJH4398 
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EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN~ Ui1109WB1982PL:C034938 

Statement Of Cash Flows for the year 8nded March-31, 2023 

A,.;Cash,Flow·froin ·opei~UnQ activ,tles 
,P((;lfi~:'(losS) tietOre TJJX' 
~dlllStffierits klr:' 
,oa1;1re·oii!i:tion 
qp,llttl}eeot' Ptovi~on ag.,iiosl SW!nd~rd A1;1~t1:t 
N~t,c;:amf(l.oss).on ReclempliOo .of Mu~ual Fund 
'NetGalnJ(Loss) on Redempllori ofPreterer1ce·s11ares: 

sl--0.S"s 00 S'at!:\:ol' Property, Ptilnt and e~•uiprrTent 
1J.w

0
~m .Sale, Qf Ffoanciarlnslr_urnenf,.{ShoifTerm) 
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a. ·caal). floW from·-lnvestlng activities' 
,P1,1rcbase 6( lnv~lmetns 

FQr th~ year·eodet! 
~arc:l'J•:3·t 2p~3-

44.64 
. 

. 
0:7& 

(2.14} 
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Mi 
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Netcasfl used in•tnvest!Rg,AC1;Wities (B) 

·, _c; ~°h.fl01,ffr!)llJ:ffnanc!n1::1 actlvltlEls 
lrl¢rea:se/(De(;:r8a5eJ In Long term_ 8orl'QWings 
:Proceec;ii;•rrom ls_sue.Clf'Equill(Share·Cap\la! 

Net Ca~hJi'om Flnancing·P,ctlvitlCs (C) 
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EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

3. Ca.sh and Cash Equivalents 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

Cash on hand 0.25 0.48 
Balances with Banks 
- in Current Account 2.87 23.14 

Total 3.12 23.62 



S. Investments 

Particulars 

As,at Marc:h 31, 2023 
Investment In Equity Instruments 

(l)'Qu_oted 
Mahdya Firiance Co.-Ltd 

Investment In Debt Instruments: 

(1)8% NON CUMULATIVE REDEEMABLE 
P-REFERENCE SHARES 

Devina Absana Pvt Ltd. 

Olbaloke Griha N\rman Pvt Ltd. 
Shivagyan Hi - Rise Pvt Ltd, 
Xallent Hl• Rise Pvt Ltd. 
Yamuna H_I- ~l~e Pvt Ltd. 

(ii) 1% ONSECtJREO.OPTIONAI..LY CONVERTIBLE 
OEBENTORE 
Poppy Realtors. P~t, Ltd, 
Sa!arpurla Housing Pvt. Lid, 

Investment in Mutual Funds: 
(i) HDFC Liquid F1md,Olrect Plert-Growlh Option 

Tcital - Gro:.:; IAI 

(A) lnves~ents outside India 
Bl Investments in India 

To~I -·Gross rBJ 
Tofyll of(Arfu·tally-with (B), 

Lei;s: Impairment loss 
i:iJ!Owance re)· 
total- NetfO •(A)· (C)J 

EASU,N CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes.to the financial statement for the year- ended·March 3-1, 2023 

At Fair Va!u,8 
Olfference 

Thl'QU9h 
Face Through 
Value Quantity other 

other 
Through profit or 

(In Rs.) comprehen 
comprehen loss 

slve 
sivo income 

Income 

10 116350 3.61 

100 '4000 31.41 

100 34200 31.59 

100 34500 31.87 

100 34500 31.87 
100 34500 31.87 

1000 51000 
1000 45000 

396.63 

3.61 656.24 

3.6-1 555.24 
3,61 555.24 

. . 
M1 55;5.24 

\f'\'l>.,IU._.,,.,. .. , 

Ammortls Subtotal 
Others:• Total 

ed cost 

3;61 3:6-1 

31.41 31.41 
3Ui9 31.59 

31:87 3U7 
31,87 3-1,87 

31.87 31.87 

532.22 532.22 $322'2 

472.04 472;04 472."04 

396.63 396.63 

1,00~.26 1,seJ.10 1,GG3.10 

1,563.10 1,5133,10 
. 1,663,:10 1;563,10 

1,004.26 1,563.10 1,563.10 



5.1nvestments (continued) 

PartlbUlars 

As at MarCh 31, 2022 
Investment in Equity iti$ttuments 

{i) Quoted 

Mandya Flnance Co. Ltd 

Investment in Debt lnstrumetnts: 
(i} 8"(. NON C.UMUJ..ATIVE CONVERTIBLE 
PREFERENCE SHARES 
O!;lvl!'Ja Absan3 P'lt ltd. 
D!baloke GrihS Nirman Pvt·Ud. 
~hlvaQyan:Hi ·- Rise Pvt Ud. 
Xe!lenl Hi- Ri$e Pvt Ltd. 

Yamuna Hl• f:l,isu Pvt Ltd. 

{ii) 1% UNSECURED OPTIONALLY CONVERTIBLE 
DEBENTURE 
Poppy Realtors Pvt. ltd. 

Sa!arpuria Housing P'lt. Ltd. 

nvestnwnt _in Mutual Funds: 

(l) HDFC.liquid Fund'r:iirect Plan Growth 0/itlon 

Total- Gross- (A) 

(A) Investments outside India 
(B)•lnvestments in lndla 

Total,...Gross (B) 

To~I of{A) totally With (B) 

Less: .Impairment loss 
allowance;(C) 

Total- Net [O·=< (A). (CIJ 

EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC03493:8 

Noles to the flnariclal statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

At Fair Value 

Face 
, ........ 

Through 
Thi'ough 

Value .Quantity other 
other Through profit or 

(lnRs.) comprehao 
comprehen , ... 

slve .,,, 
income 

10 118350 3.61 

100 42000 35,45 

100 42000 35.45 

100 37500 31.65 

100 3750Q 31.65 

100 37500 31.65 

1000 61000 

1000 50000 

14604.446 

3.6:1 165,85 

3.61 165.85 

3.81 165,85 

. 

3.61 165,85 

(R$ ln Lakhs} 

others" Total 
Ammortis Subtotill 

ed.eoSt 

3,61 3i61 

35.45 35,45 

35.45 35.45 
31;65 31,65 

31.65 $1-.65 

31.65· 31.66 

816,24 ~16.24 616,'24 

507.61 501.61 5Q7.61 

. 

1,123.85 1,293.32 1,293.32 

1,123.65 1,293.32 . 1,293..32 

1~123.85 1,293.32 . 1,,293,32 

1,123.86 1,293;32 . 1,2113.32 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes-to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

4. Loans 

As at March 31 2023 As at March 31 2022 
At Fa!r Value At Fciir'ValUe 

Through Designated Throug 
Des)gnat 

Particulars 
Amortised Other Throug 

at fair value Tcital 
Amortised 

h Other Through 
ed at fair Total 

cost Compreh through Subtotal cost value Subtotal 

enslve 
h profit profit or 

Compre: profit or through 
or loss henslve loss 

Income loss Income 
profit or 

toss 

Loans (A) 
(i) Term Lpans - - - . . . 
(ii} Loans repayable on demand 355'.11 355.11 . . . . 
(Iii) Other LOans: . . . . . 42.16 42,16 

lntercornorate De"""S!ts- . . 
Total.1Al Gross 355.11 . - 355;11 42.16 . . 42.16 

Les$:.lmna:irmentloss allowance . . . . - . - . 
Total'!Al'-Ne't 355.11 . . . . 3.55.11 42.16 . . . . 42.16 

(Bl 
(i) S!:!CUred by tangible assets / cash 
ffows - . - . . . -
(ii) Coveied Bank/Government 
Gua~ntees . . . . . . . . 
rnn Unsecured 355.11 - 355.-11 42.18 . - . . 42.16 

Total Gross 355.11 355.11 42:16 . . 42,16 
. 

Less: lmoairment loss. anowance - . . . . . -
Total:!81 Net 355.11 - . . 355.11 42.16 . . . . 42.16 

(C) 
(i) Public Sector . - - . 
tii) Others 355.11 - . 355, 11 42.16 . 42,16 
Tota1·1Cl.Gross 355.11 . . 355,11 42.16 . . . 42.16 

Less: 1mr1airment loss allowance . . - . . - - . . 
Total tCrNet 355.11 - . 355.11 42.16 . . . 42.16 

tv 
r 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKf'TS LIMITf'D 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statement for the year en<ted March 31, 2023 

7' Other Ftrianeial Assets 
IRS. In Lakhs 

Particulars 
Asat Asa( 

March 31 2023 .March 31 =22 

Staff Advance 1.(13 . 
·interest On NCO ·Receivable 8.64 9.99 
Total 10.57 9.99 

8.1 Current Tax Assets /Net\ 'Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

"arch 31 Z023 Mareh 31 2022 

Advance Tax and TDS (Net of Provision of"IT Rs. 14 42,902 /Ml 3.11 4.60 
Total 3.11 4,60 

The rerioncil.iatiQn o,f estlmatf;Jd income tax to income tax exbense is as ·below: 

Partteutars ' 
For the year ended 

Mareh 31, .2013 

Profitl(loss) before tax 44.64 
Statutory Income Tax Rate 25.168% 
Expected income tax expense at statutory income t~x rate 11.23 
AdJµstments for:~ 
{i)Jncorne,exempt from tax 
'(ii} Effect of different tax-rat~ on Jnvestments (0.54) 
(ill} Adjustrtit!nt for Fair Value Changes (13.S5) 
{iv) Adjustment for Provision for Standard Asseh, 0.19 
(\,) Other differences (including expenses- not deductible) 3.06 
{vi) Mat Credit Entitlement -
(vii). unrecognised deferred iax assets 11.42 
(:Viii) 1neome tax of earlier years 8.47 
Tctal Tax Exnense te<:onnised in S,tatememt of tlrofit-and loss 19.89 

-
9 •. Oe:ferred Tax: Assets/!Uabilttles\ CNetl_ 

Particulars As at Asc\t 
March 31 2023 March 31- 2022 

Oef8rred Tax Assets 
Falr value ·of Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss 
Fair value of Investments carried at fair value through OCI 

3.50 

on Property, Plant & Equipment 0.01 
Unabsorbed carry foflNard of losses 
- s.nort-term capltal losses 
• Long-term capital losses 
~ Business losses. 

Totaf - M1 

'oeferrea ·ru UabiiittAs 
:Unrealis'ed gab) 6n'lrtve.stmont carrir1<1 ~t fuir 
value through other comprehensive income . -
Other items 7.91 . 

TQtal 7.91 -Net deferred· tax assets J lllabiUtlesl 17.91 3.51 
Less': Unrecoanised Deferred Tax Assets - -
Net deferred tax assets I IUabilitieS'i 1 7:91 3,51 

(Rs. in La.Khs 

For the year ended 
Mareh 31, 2022 

116.57 
25.168% 

29.34 

(11,32) 
(6.79) 
(1.06) 
0.04 

8.28 
10.18 
18.30 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
.CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the·finanC!al .statement for the year ended March ·31-, 2023 

a. Reconclllatlon Of Deferrecl'Tax 

Recognised/ (reversed) 
Recognised/ 

Particulars 
Balance as at in Statement of Profit & 

(reversed} in Other 

March 31, 2022 Loss Comprehensive 
Income 

Deferred. TaX As$ets 
Ori fair value of.lnves_tment5;-carried.at fair value 
through ·profit or IOss / at cost 3.50 (3.50) 

On fair value of investment carried at fair value 
throug_h ·Other comprehensive incorile 
On Property, f=)\ant &-Equipment 0.01 (0.01) 

On Unabsorbed carry forward of losses 
- ShorHerm capital losses 
~ Long-term capital losses 
- Business losses 

Total 3.51 13.51 . 

Q~ferred Tax Liabilities 
On 'Other items . 7,91 . 

Total . 7.91 . 
Net-def erred -tax. assets/1 liabilittes\ 3.51 111.42 . 
Less: Unrecoanised Deferred Tax- Assets - . 
Net deferred tax aSsets/lllabillties\ 3.51 111.42 . 

Recognised/ (reversed) 
Recognised/ 

Particulars 
Balance as at in Statement of Profit & 

(reversed) In Other 
March 31, 2021 

Loss 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Deferred Tax Assets 
On -fair value.of Investments carried at fair value 
through profit or loss / at cost 11.77 (8,27) 
On fair value of-Investment carried at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
On Prbperty, Plant & Equipment 0.02 (0,01) 
On Unabsorbed carry foMard of losses 
~ ShorHerm capital losses 
~ Long~term Capital losses 
~ Business .losses 

Jo.ta! 11.79 18,28 . 
D8ferred· T_axi Liabilities 
On· Other items 

Total . . . 
Net-deferred tax ~ssetshliabillties) 11.79 18,28 . 
Less: Unrecoanised Deferred Tax Assets . . 
Net-deferred-tax assets/1Jiabllitles\ 11.79 18,28 . 

(Rs. In Lakhs 

Balance as,at March 
31,2023 

. 

. 
-

-
-
-. 

7.91 
7.91 

17.91 
-

{7.91 

(Rs. in Lakhs 

Bala~ce as at March 
31, ·202-2 

3.50 

0.01 

. 
-
-

3.51 

. 

. 
3.51 
. 

3.51 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETSLIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 6: Inventories 

Asat 
Particulars March 31, 2023 

Face No.of 
Fair Value Name 

Value Securities 
BFL Exports Ltd. 10.00 5,000 -
BaidFinex Services Pvtltd. 10.00 - -
Dsq Software Ltd. 10.00 9,250 -
Fortwilliam Ltd. 10.00 5,000 -
Global Software Ltd. 10.00 8,750 -
Origin Agrostar Ltd. 10.00 500 -
Quality Synthethics Ltd. 10.00 1,000 -
Nextgen Animation Media Ltd. 10.00 200 -
Sflverlfne Technologies Ltd. 10.00 500 . 
Total 30,200 -

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 

No.of 
Fair Value 

Securities 
5,000 a.so 

1,05,000 22.83 
9,250 0 .. 61 
5,000 -
8,750 -

500 -
1,000 1.35 

200 -
500 0.01 

1,35,200 25.30 



Note: 1 O Property Plant & Equipment 

TANGIBLE.ASSETS 
Air Conditioner 0.04 . . 

Computer 0.07 . . 
Total 0.11 - -
Previous Year 2021~22 0.11 - . 

Note:-

EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statem~nt for-the year ettded March 31 1 2023 

0.04 . . . 
- 0.07 0.05 -

0.04 Q.07 0.05 . 
- 0.11 0.05 . 

1) The Company does not own any Immovable Property as at the Balance Sheet Date. 

. 
-
. 
. 

2} The Company has not revalued. its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right-of-Use Ass·ets} by a Registered Valuer as defined under rule 2 of Compariies 
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. 

.,..,< s··u-\.-✓ ~""' 

0--- / .. •~✓--..:::c··• . 
I 

..,_/" ..::;:-,---., ' 
. 'I .. ' { J,

1 
Kclk2,ta \,;. \ 

'* 3-;_,::7 .. nc i7J\ 

\ o' ·"·· __ •··i#~; * , .a;,'\ hiJ 
'\;""0~""-..§ ---~!:!!!?'..\~ 

(Rs. in Lakhs)I 

. . - 0.04 

- 0.05 0.02 0.02 
. o.os 0.02 0.06 
. 0.05 0.06 0.06 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 
Nqtes tq the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

11. Other Non Financial Assets 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
As at Asat 

Particulars March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 

Bengal Salarpuria Eden Infra Dev Co. Pvt. ltd.(JV 
Deposit) - 610.00 
Advance against Property 110,90 -
Total 110.90 s10.o~. 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
GIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

12. Other Financial Liapilltles 

Asat 
Particulars March 31, 

2023 

(a) Other payables 1.32 

Total 1.32 

13. Provisions 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 

2023 

(a) Provision for employee benefits 
• Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuity . 

(b) Contingency Provision against Standard Assets 0.87 
'fotal 0,87 

14. Other Non-financial liabilities 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 

2023 

Statutory Liabilities 0.09 
Total 0.09 

)<'\, 
' 

J ·,. 
. . ,., 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Asat 

March 31, 
2022 

1.41 
1.41 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
Asat 

March 31, 
2022 

. 
0.11 
0.11 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
Asat 

March 31, 
2022 

0.05 

0.05 

y 



rs No 

1.5.SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised: 
(?500000 Shares o!Rs. 10 each 

Total 

EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
ClN: L511O9WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to the financial statement for the Yflar ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Issued, Subscribe_d and Fully Paid up : 

5229209 Shares of Rs.10 Each 

Total 

A) Recon-cfliation of'the number of share~ outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year 

I) Enuitv Shares As at March 31, 2023 
Ooscfij:>tlon Number Amount 

Number of Shares outstanding at the· _beginning of the year 52.2.9 522:92 
Number of Shares issued durino. the_vear - -
Number·otShares·oUtstandinn-at the end of the vear 52.29 522.92 

B) Oe.tails· of Shareholders holding more than 5% Of the aggregate shares in the·Compariy;~ 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 
No. of Shares ! % of Holdina 

APURVA SALARPUR!A 2108760 40.327 

tRs. !n Lakhs) 

Asat As at 
March 31,. ~023 March 31, 2022 

550.00 550.00 

550.00 550.00 

522.9:lc 522:92 

522;92 522;92 

tRs. in Lakhs 

As at March 31, 2022 
Number Amourit 

52.29 522.92 

52.29 522.92 

C)Th'ere are no-shares in the preceding-:5 Years a)loted as fully paid up without payment being received in _cash/bonus sharesfboughtback. 

D)· There are· no shares reserved ·for issue under-options and: contracts/commltments for"the sale-of-shares or disinves1ment 

E) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Shares; ... 
Equity Shares:~ The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one-vote 
per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dlrectors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuir,g Ann1.1a1 
General Meeting, except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are ~!igible to receive· the remairiing 
assets of the Company after disttibu_tion of all preferntial amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

F) Disclosure ofShareholding Of Promoters:-

Shor6!s-held by Promoters 
, .. ,. '-···-···-

As alM••ch 31, 2023 Ac at Match 31 2022 
Promoter .name No. of Shares J %- of total shares NO. of Shares J % of-total' shares 

APURVA SALARPURIA HUF 100.733 1.926 100733 1.926 
ALOK SALARPURIA 25000 0.478 25000 0.478 

APURVA SALARPURIA 2108760 40,327 2108760 40.327 
DEVINA SALARPURIA 30957 0.592 30957 0.5.92 
GIRIDHARI PRASAD 3750 0.072 3750 0.072 
JAYSHREE GUPTA 100 0.002 100 0,002 

MAUNI 4050 0.077 4050 0.077 
NARAYAN! DEVI 48300 0.924 48300 0,9'24 

PURUSHOTTAM LAL AGARWAL 300 0.006 300 0,006 
RAJSHREE AGARWAL 100 0.002 100 0.002 

RAM PRASAD SALARPURIA 124250 2.376 204800 3.916 
GANPAT RAM DOKANIA HUF 80550 1.540 80560 1.540 

SALARPURIA COMMOTRADE LLP 49600 0.949 49600 0.949 
TOTAL 2576450 2657000 

% Chang_e 
during the 

year 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
Notes to. the Financial Statement$ for the year ended March 31, 2023 

16. OTHER EQUITY 

Asat As.at 

Particulars March 31 2023 March 31 2022 

RESERVES & SURPLUS 
(i)General Reserve 
Bal,;1nce as_per la$t Financial Statements 862.53 862.53 
Add: Transferred during the year - -
Total 862.53 862.53 

(ii).S.ecurities Premium 
Balanc_e as per last Financial Statements 114.70 114.70 

Addition during the year 
Total 114.70 114.70 

{m) :8per-1al Ha'iPnt:1-!! 
Reserve l'und under the RSI Act, 1934 
f!Hlij!iei,i Hs ~ijl IH~l FllialiCIHI 6l~tijfil~fit~ 1~b.ob 118.!:,1 
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 4.96 18.04 

Total 141.60 13&,65 

(iv) Retained Earnings 

6i!liilll~e iii§ oer laijJ Financial Statementffl ,7:, qll ?9'\ 7? 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 24,7Q 08.27 
Remeasurement of Financial Instruments through FVTPL(Net of Tax) 
RevalL1ation of lrivehtory 

(18.04) Lessffransferred to RBI Reserve (4.96) 
Total 393.75 373.9.6 

ITEMS·OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(v) OCI Reserves 

Oa!arice as per last FinanClal Statements 0.24 0.24 
Pair va1ue changes of investments In •~ulty shares 
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of OCf Investments 
Deferred tax effect . 
Total. Q.?4 0.24 

!Tota.I 1,512.82 1,488.0.7 

Nature and Purpose.of Reserves:• 

General Reserve: General Reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from/to Retained earnings for 
appropriation purposes. 

Securities Premium: Securities Premium Account is used to record premiurn received upon issuance of shares. This can be utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

Special Reserve: Special reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to Sec.45'1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the ''RBI Ace). 
No appropriation of any sum from this Reserve Fund shall be· made by the company except for the purposes as· specified by RBI frdm time to 
time, 

Retained Earnings! Retained Earnings represents the -undistributed accumulative profits· of the Company. This can be utilised. in accbrdahce 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

OCI Reserve: It represents the cumulative gains/ (losses} arrising on the revaluation of Equity Shares (Other than investments in Subsidiaries 
and Associates, which are carried at cost) measured at fair value through OCI, net of amounts reclassified to'Retained Earnings on disposal of 
such lristurments. 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LlivlJTED 
CIN: L51109W81982PLC034938 

Notes to the flnanclal statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

17. Interest lntome 
(Rs In J..lkhs) 

For the ye11r ended March'31, 2023 For the y&ar'end!')d March :!1, 2022 

On Flnanclal 
Interest Income on Oti·Flnancial 

,Interesllncorne on 

Particula;rf Assets measured 
On Flnanclal Flnanclal Assets Assets measured 

On Financlal"Assets Financial Assets 

at'falr value 
Assets measured clasSlfl&d at fair ·at fair value measured at classified at fair 

thrOughOCI 
at Amortised Cost value through profit 

through CCI 
Amortised Cost value. through profit 

or loss or·Ioss 

Interest on Loan.Given 10.43 54.-53 . 
lnteres·t on-Debentures 11.52 . 4.58 . 
Total . 21.95 59.-11 

18.- Net gain/ (loss.) on.fair value changes 
(Rs. In Lakhs 

Particulars 
For. the. year ended For the y_ear ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

{A) Ne.t gahtl (Loss) on financial instruments at fair value through prom or loss 

(!) .On 1rad!n_g portfolio 
·(Ii) On financial instruments al fair value through profit or loss 
- !nvestmenis 19.6& 12,86 

• Inventories 

JB) .. 0:therS 
Fair'va!Ue G_alnl (Loss) on:nnanclal Instruments carried at amortised cost 35.73 13.85 

{C) Total Netgain/(loss) on _fah-val_ue changes . 55.41 26.71 

Fair-Value changes: 
-Realised . . 
-Unrealised 55.41 26.71 

Total. Net galn/{loss) on fair-value chang~s {D) to tally with {c) 55.41 26;71 

19. Other·lncome 
IRs. ln·LakhS} 

Parttcu!ars 
F0r the. year ended For the. year:ende'd 

March 31, .2023 March 31, 2022 

Net-Gainl(Loss) on Redeniplion of Mutual Fund 2.14 22.08 
Net Galn/(Loss) on Redemption of Preference Shares 4":72 22.91 
Pryvs!ons for Standard Assets I 4.08 
Other Income 9,35 
Total 6.86 49,42 

r 

V 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes. to the financial statement .for the year ended llt'larch 31·1 2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs 

For the year For the year 
20.Purchase of Trade-in-Stock ended ended 

March 31 1 ·2023 March 31, 2022 
Purchase of Shares & Mutual Funds - . 
Total - . 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

For the year For the year 
~1.Changes In Inventories of Stock-in-Trade ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31., 2022 

Opening Stock 
Stock of shares and Mutual Fund 25.30 25.03 

Closing-Stock 

Stock of shares anci Mutual Fund 0.00 25.30 
lncrease/(Decrease) In Stock 25.30 -0,27 

(Rs In LakhSJ 
For the year For tho year 

Particulars ended ende.d 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Directors Remuneration 1.20 1.60 
Salary ond Bontio 8.85 7.06 
Total 10.05 8.6G 

23 Oe.preciation (Rs in Lakhs) 
For the year For:the year 

Particulars ended ended 
March 31, 2023 M3rch 31,.2022 

J='w!preciation - . 
Total . -

24. Oth&r &XJ,1tim:1es _.,, IR~- in L?kh•l 
rs11tta yoar t-Oi' uttt y11ar 

Particulars ended ended 
March 31, 2023 March 3·1 1 202'2 

ArhtPrtisemE-nt 4.05 3.L, 
Annual depository Fee 0,53 0.27 
Boni( Ohllrg~., MS 0.02 
Demat Cf}arges 0,03 0.02 
FIiiing fees 0.04 0.06 
Internal Audit Fees 0.30 0.30 
Ustif'!9 f~es 4.01 3.84 
Misc exp o.57 
General Expenses 0.32 -
Mt1u1tdhldt1t;i:! C!itJl9tJl:i 0.08 0.09 
Auditor's fees and expenses 

w Statutory Audit Fee 0,35 0.35 
Penal Interest - -
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -
Loss on Sale of Financial Instrument (Short Term) 5.32 -
Processing Fees o.18 
Poctage·& stamp - 0.16 
f'r!nti11g fh ildliu11u1y U.Ul 0.11 
Professional Charges 0.50 0.14 
Rates&. Taxes 005 0,05 
Repair & Mallltenance 0;04 0.08 
Share Transfer Maintalnance Fee 0.67 0.60 
!ravelling & Conveyance 0.22 0.23 
Total 16,55 10.28 

2$ Provisions (Rs in Lakho) 
For the year F¢r th(fyear 

PartiCutars ended 8hded 
March 31 2:023 March·.31 2022 

Provsions for standard Assets 0.75 -
Total ,,/ G '( i~}-.i"~•,,, 0.75 . 

y.-,_,.,--,..,:s ' y 



215 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:­
Cominltments:-

EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS L.IMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for-f NH (Previous Year -t NH). 

Contingent Liabil!ties:-

* Contingent Uabmties not provided for - f Nil {Prevlo1,1s.Year - '" Nil), 

27 The company does not own any Investment Prop.erty as on th'e Balance Sheet Date. Properties held for .earning Rentals and/or capital' appreciation are classified as 
Investment Properties. 

28 Basic and Diluted Earninfls Per Share (As per Ind AS 33- Earnings Per Share): (Rs. !n Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2:022 

Net,Pt6flt/{LosS) ~fter Tax attr!but~bte to equity holder's 24.75. 98.27 
Wi:!J~hte.d·avera~e--nurnber of equ1tv shares.outstandln.? (Numbers) 52,29;209 S2;29,209 
Basic and. Diluted Earn IMS per sha~e. '(Nomin.al Value of Share Rs.10) (In Rs.) 0.47 1.88 

29 Segmf;!nt Reporting: 

30 

The Cohlpciny-'s Operatlng.Segmentlncludes_primarily Financing activity and lrivestment activity. This in context oflnd·AS 108 on Segment Reporting•Operat!ng Segment 
.reporting, In the opinion of the management, are considered to constitute reportable.segment. 

Related Party Transactions: 

Srl. 01)/!ning Balance as ou 
No,. Whei'e conunon·conttoJ exists Rclntittnship 01.04.2022 

' •) Loan C'rlven 
I S. S As~ociates !Common Control Exist 26.79 

TOTAL:a:1 26.79 

S1. 
Where Common Control Exists 

Amount as on 31.03.2023 
No, Rdationship (') 

. bl IHterest Received (Loan\ 
I S S Associates Common Control Exist 0.72 

0,72 
lnteres"t Received filcbentures) 

I Belfast Holdings Pvt. Ltd, Common Control Exist 0.30 
2 Ppppy Realtors.Pvt. Ltd. Common Control Exist " 

0.30 
1'0TAL , b, 1,02 

el Kov M1mJ1r>:rrinl PcMonl'J n.em1U1er1ttiou 
I ~tl,r:l31!.,01,tnm Lal A12<'irwa1-~ Whuf t!'i m;-Of rrxwnr " 
2 C.au:riw nansal Chlei'Pihandal Oificer 3.28 
J Aditva Sadani Wholetime Director 1.20 
4 .Prillavi.Moonka"'"' Comoanv Secretary J.67 
5 SwatiM.odi·u• Comoanv Secretary 1.34 

'fOTAL : c, 9.49 
• Mr,Purushpuam Lal Agarwal - Wholet11ne.D1rector deceased on 22-0::i-2021 

"'* Ms,Pallavi Mo,ouka has resigued w.e.f. 07-01-2023-
.,,..,r._Mli. Swati Modi has been appoinled ns CS w.e.f.- 26-12-2022 

d\ JV Denosit 
Bengal Salarpuria Eden Int'. Dev.Co. Pvt. 

!common Control Exist l Ltd. " 

TOTAL :d: I -

c\ lnvcstment in OCD 
I Poppy Realtorii Pvt. Ltd. Common-Coritrol Exist " 

TOTAL ae.: " 

0 Sale of Investment in OCO 
Belfast Holdfrigs-.Pvt Ltd. Common Control Exist 150,00 

TOTAL :f: - . 
"•• 150.00 .,,-· - ,_,.,. 

,, "" 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Applied/ Given ~efund l Repnymcnt Balnnce Amou·nt as on 
during the,ycar du_ring the )'ear J):03;2023 

' ' ' 
0.651 27.43 I -
0.65 I 27.43 

Amount11so1.1 
31.03.2022 n 

2.23 
2,23 

-
2.08 
2.08 
4.31 

Q.60 
2.92 
1.00 
4:07 

-
8.59 

610.00 
610.00 

610.00 
610.00 

" 

-



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes i:o Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

31 As per tile- Company's policy, Investment in Equity of Subsidiaries/Associates are valued at cost and all other Equlty·lnvestmE!ntS are valued at FVTOCI ·in accordance 
Wl_th the relevant lnd!an Accounting Staridards. 
As Market Value of"sorhe of the shares are not·;wa!lable on 31.03.2022 due to delistlng or non trading, hence value of sui::h sto.cks.has been taken aS per last.y~r. 

32 Expenditure ln Foreign Corrency and Earnings in Foreign Currency;" NH (Previous Year-" Nil) 

33 The Company has classified its asset$ in accordance with the Prudential Norrns as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The Company_ doe.s· not have any non 
performing assets as on the Balance.Sheet Date. 

34 "Employee Benefl.ts" as per Indian Ac.counting Standard 19: 
tho11 term '1mp!~11JJJ lionchlu are rnoognrnos: o.a on cmpOnoo ot tho undlooountoct urrlount In tho etatemcrlt of rrotit fJ. Looci to tlw. 1eor in wh!oh the t'Clc.tM :it.rv1i'M.\ oi'f. 
reria~tM. 
As per management, Provision of the Gratuity Act are not applicable to the Company at present. 

35 There is no·amount outstanding and payable to Investors' Education and Protection Fund as on 31.03.2023 

3$ There is·ni;> amount outstandi_ng and pay~ble to Small Scale lnd_ustrfal Undertaking as on 31.03.2023 

37 In. terms ·cf NOtiftcatlon No. RBl/2014-15/299 dated 10.11.2014 issued by the Reserve Bank of lhdia, provision for contigericy haye been provided. Rs. 86469:00 on Stan~rd 
Assets of Rs. 3,55, 11,209.00 on the.outstanding balance as on 31.03.2023. 

38 Previous year's figU(es have been regrouped & rearranged wherever necessa1y to confirm with this year's dasslfication. 

39 Oinolooure of Loon9 or advances In the natur~ of Loans gr&nt~d by thtt Cc.flip,'iilY'" 
Type of Bor'rowcr Amount of loan or Percentage to the total 

1;1dv1;1m.:e In the nature Loans and Advances 
Of loan outstanding in the nature of loans 

Pmmoter NIL Nil 
Directors NIL NIL 
l(MPs NIL NIL 
Related narties· NIL NIL 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 

CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 
Notes1b Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

40. OiscloSure Requirements under Scale Based Regulation for NBFC 
A) EXPOSURES 

1) Exposure to Capital Market 
Particulars 

Direct investment in equity shares, convertib_le bonds, convertible debes,;tufe$ . .and Units of equity Oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exdusiVely invested in corporate 

debt. 
2) lntra~'3rollp EXpoSUre 

Sectors 

Loans & Advances 
Investment in Debenture 
Depa.Sits 

l/(_ 
,..,..--;_-:~:·_. 

121::, 
::~{(, 32\,-.,.;,~ F.•'jj 

\ 0\, /,;_a·, 
\. "Z"3';<'------..-/"\_,..:;S'/ 
"'\.,,,«_:>•--.;Ac.:--~~',,,-

·-."- -

Total amount 
of Intra-

Group 

Exposure 

{Rs Lakhs) 

-
960.00 

-

y 

Current Year 
Total amount Percentage Total amount 

of Top 20 Intra of Intra~ of Intra-Group 

Group Group Exposure 

Exposure Exposure to {Rs lakhs) 

{Rs Lakhs) Total 
exposure of 

the NBFC 

- 26.78 

960.00 100.00 1,110.00 

- 610.00 

{Figures in _'LakhS] 

Current Year Previous Year 

3.61 3.61 

Previous Year 

Totaf Percentage of 

amount of lntra..Gi'oup 

Top 20 Intra~ E,cposureto 

Group Total 
Exposure exposure of 

{Rs Lakhs) the NBFC 

26.78 63.00 

1,110.00 100.00 

610.00 100.00 



l 
I 

B} Related Party Dis.closure 

~ 
1 ---··: ---- Parent : : 

{as per ownership; or rty 

_.· '.,. 

t_Ufr¢rit Pl'evlb.us 
vea:r - -1·---

. ' 
y_e~.r 

Borrowings taken 
durin,, the vear 
Amount Outstanding-at 
the end of the vear 
Loan Given during the 
'·-a, 
Amount Outstanding at 
the end of the-vear 
Deoosits 
Placement of deposits 

Advances 
Investments 
Purchase of fixed/other 
assets 
Sale of fixed/other 
assets 
Interest oald 
Interest received 
Others 

!-

St.lbS_!d_lJf!i., -< _- - kisociates/ :a, ' 
Joht-verlfuf~S j -: <:;: 

-..... <c\. ' -\:t.-· 
current Prep.11:>i.l~.ciie~~ I : -. Cui'i"erit-,,ear 

·f,'· year 
•··• 

f~;:r;! 
-~0L 1 .. ,1 

""':-i "' ~'tk,. ~0-,/ 
~, Gd .D..~,0'3' ;.,,­:...:::_:__.,., 

lofacs 

'.'_.-7 K€Y-Mimage-nerit - -- Mfati~~;'Of'KwManaS:ement : (~ _, -_ ~[ ·;·Oth~rs 
. I T-Q'i:al 

;,.;, f>e:rsorm,d ·- · ."l'erso;;nei ·. liit, • ii: < ..•. ·. ·.·• ., :'>. ' ·,·,,, .. 

;~;urre:nt -PEV1oUS. I tu/lent'"'!! _Previo'U!qie.i:r PreViOus·vear t11r.riif"lt-Y:ear PreiJ.ictU:s year , .. ·.··1c;>;r - . 
year •year :. 

. . .. 
- ···. 

. 

- 26.79 26.79 

- 26.79 26.79 

- 610.00 610.00 

1"'2 4.31 1'.02 4.31 

9.49 8.59 9.49 8.59 

t,· 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

41. Financial Instruments and related disclosures 

(A) Categories of Financial lntruments 
Set out below is a comparison, by _class, of the carrying amou--ts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments: 

Pa"rticulars 

Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Loans 
Inventories 
Other Financial assets 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
LOans 
Inventories 
Other Financial assets 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total 

FVTPL 

555.24 

555.24 

FVTPL 

165.85 

165.85 

March 31, 2023 
FVTOCI Amorti~ed cost 

3.61 

3.61 

3.12 
1,004.26 

355.11 

10.57 
1,373.Q_G 

1.32 
1.32 

March 31, 2022 
FVTOCI Amorti~.d cost 

3,61 

3.61 

~ ,_/_.,· sY.~~ / ,,,::-;;:.---:.., 4' 0 
~-- 1- '.':.:c0 

~~(,~l!~f~~ )'~) 
"'"';,,)-... £:!2)/ 
,,~~2;;ai§:~;;;/ 

23.62 
1,123.85 

42.16 
25.30 
9.99 

1,224.92 

1.41 
1.41 

Total 

Total 

3.12 
1,563.10 

355;11 

10.57 
~'Ll!_Q 

1.32 
1.32 

23.62 
1,293.32 

42.16 
25.30 

9.99 
1,394.39 

1.41 
1.41 

1-

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Carn1n9. value 

3.12 
1,563.10 

355.11 

10.57 
1,931.90 

1.32 
1.32 

Rs. in Lakhsl 

Carn1n9. value 

23.62 
1,293.32 

42.16 
25.30 
9.99 

1,394.39 

1.41 
1A1 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L!':1109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

41. Financial Instruments and re:Jated disclosures (continued) 

(B) Fair Value Hierarchy 
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Compcn~/s assets and liabilities. The financial instruments ar.e catagorized into three levels based on the inputs 
used to arrive at fair va!ue measurements as described below: 

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1 ): Level 1 hierarchy lncludes financial ins!rumEnts measured using qu~d prices. This inciu::les listed equity instruments that have quoted 
price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanses is valLed <Jsing the closing i:rice as at the reportirgperiod. 

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financia!'instruments that are not traded in an active mar!;.et f,:,r example over-the counter derivatives) is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable marte: data and rely as Httle as possible on entity-specific .astimates. If all significant inputs required to fair 
value an instrument are obseivable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable Inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is no; based on observat'1e market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3. This is the case for unquoted preference shares and unquotej equlty shares {rights) carried at FVTPL and unquoted equity secuflties carried at FVTOCI included in level 3. 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchv for assets as at:March 31 2023: Fair ~alue measurement usina 

Date of valuation Total Quot-ed prices in ; Sifgnificant observable Significant 
Particulars acih--e markets I inputs unobservable inputs 

(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) 
Financial Instruments measured at fair value; 
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 
Investments in Mutual Funds March 31, 2023 396.63 396.63 - -

Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares March 31, 2023 158.61 - - 158.61 
Investments at fair value through OCt 

. 

Investments in Quoted Equity Shares ftilarch 31, 2023 3.61 3.61 - -
Investments measured at Amortised Cost 
Investment in 1 % Optionally Convertbile Debenture March 31, 2023 1,004.26 - - 1,004.26 

--

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the period. 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchv for assets as at Mar:eh 31, 2022: Fair ~Jue measurement usinn 
Date of valuation Total Qunted prices in Sig,n,ificantobservable Significant 

Particulars act1VB markets inputs unobservable inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 21 (Level 3) 

Financial Instruments measured at fair value: 
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 
Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares March 31, 2022 165.85 165.85 
Investments at fair value through OCI -
Investments in Quoted Equity Shares - March 31, 2022 3.61 3.61 -

Investments measured at Amortised Cost · · ,,,, .. :, , ;~-, 
Investment in 1% Ootionallv Convertbile Debenture March 31, 2022 1, 12a~~"'c0, - · 1,123.85 
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the period. 

I( 
I ~;7 --- -~ -.-,;-;;;,-·­
,:::; / Koitc--i:::. \c.\ 
\~J 32_i?·'SOE l ~} 
\'(-\. ).,, I 
~0.~-:.:~~l1/ 

y 



EASU.N CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

41. Financial Instruments and related disclosures (ce>ntinued) 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities isincluded at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than .in a 
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

1) The fair values of the quoted equity shares are based on price quotations atthe reporting date or the last quoted price as available on the reporting date. 
2) The valuation of unquoted preference shares and unquoted debentures requires management to make certain assumptions aboutthe model inputs, including forecast of cash flows, 
discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for 
these unquoted preference shares and bonds. In case of instruments having option to convert with the Company, the management has assigned probable likelihood of conversion 
depending on equity stake in the target entity, domain of operation and liquidity. Wherever, the probability is low, valuation has been done based on redemption assumptions. 

3) Investment in units of mutual funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments are 
generally Level 1. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured (to the ex1ent information is available) and valued on a case-by 
case and classified as Level 3. 

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at March 
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as shown below: 

-----· --·· -· -- ·····--··~ -··----· ·--·- .. ,- ... _ ................ -......... 
Particulars Valuation 

Technique 

Investments in Debt Instruments (Preference Shares) DCF method 

Investments in Debt Instruments (OCD) Amortised Cost 

Significant Range 
unobservable 

innuts 

March 31, 2023: 
10.32"/4 

Discount Rate March 31, 2022: 
9.83% 

March 31, 2023: 

Effective Interest 
4.25% 
Maren 31, 

fJ-

Rate 
2022:4.25% 

.,,,,,.-:--:;~.;·:_·~ 
/4: ,,i:,;.:c::._ "-,. 

1,:,~';/ ~Ct\ 
,~/, H \"r"\_ 

/:>t r~~:::~:'.t2 r~~ 
i :h_\ 3Lbl--'¼0i::: }-k} 
\0\ /.,,_"'1f 

~½,_'-=-/wo/ X~-~;, 

\l \<,. UI Lakhsl 
Sensitivity of the input 

to fair Value 

1% Increase in the discount rate would decrease the 
fair value by Rs. 0.92 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2022 - Rs. 2.70 Lakh). 
1 % Decrease in the discount rate would increase the 
fair value by Rs. 0.94 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2022 - Rs. 2.77 Lakh) 

1% Increase in the EIR would increase the fair value 
by Rs. 14.01 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2022 - Rs. 4.36 Lakhs). 
1 % Decrease in the EIR would decrease the fair 
value by Rs. 13.86 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2022 - Rs.4.34 Lakhs) 

'r 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC0.34938 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

41. Fina11cial Instruments and related disclosures (continued) 
{C) Financi~I risk manag~ment objectives.and policies 

'The.Company's principal financial assets include Loans, Investments at Fair Value, Inventory _and Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

The. Company -is exposed :to market risk and credit risk. The Company's senior ·management oversees the management of these_tisks 
and is' supported by profeSsfonal manager who advises. on financial-risks and assist ·in preparing th·e appropriate -finalicial risk governance 
framework for the Company .. It provictes assurance to the Company's senior management that the Ccimpany's financial risk ac~vities are 
governed,by appropriate policies and procedures anct·that financial risks are Identified,· measured and managed in accordance wlth the 
Company's pollcles and risk objectives. , It is the Company's policy tOat no trading in derivatives for ·speculative purposes can be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors· reviews and agrees policies- for managing each of. these risks which are summarized below: 

(a) Market riik 
Market r!sk is the risk when the fair-value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes-in market prices. 
Market risk compri~es three types of risk: interest· rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such _as equity priGe risk and commodity 
price risk. Financial Instruments affected b.y market risk Include borrowings,. c;ieposits, derivative financial instruments, FVTPL 
lnve-s.tments, etc. 

Interest B.!!!!! Risk: Interest rate risk ·is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument ~ill fluctuate bec~use,of 
d'1an1:11;:1:.. it1 ,muket interest .rates. :rrie t;ompany's f!Xpn1=.11re to the risk of changes in markst ihtornr.t rnto~ relates primarily to the 
Co.11,pa,ny'$ luntrltmn debt obllga11ons with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced 
portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. 

Currency Risk: Currency risk is the. risk that the fu)we cash flows of a financial instrument will change becauseof cha·ngeS in, currency 
rates. DurinQ·the.period under review, the company did not-fact currency risk, 

f.t!M Risk: .Equify p_rice risk is related to change In market reference price of investments in equity securities hefd· by ttie Company. The 
fair v_alue 6f quoted investments held by the Company exposes tt)e Company to equity price risks. ln general, these investments are not 
he.Id-for trading _-purposes. 
The ·fBlr v3tue- of quoted invtslr11enls In eqully, dass!fled M tair value through Other Comprehensive Income as at M_ai'ch 31, 2023 is Rs. 
3:61 I Akh (March ,1. 2022: R,, 3,61 Lakh). 
An 1% chahge in prices Of these equity .instruments. held as et March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 would result in an impact of-Rs. 
<"l'N-\"~ I -1,,._ n-"' l"'I~ <"I <"I">,:,~ 1 _,,i.. ~-----•:••-"• 

(-b.) Li_Q'uidity Risk 
Liquidrty risk is the risk·that the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall due, or will have 
to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from mismatche~ In the timing of cash flows which· ls inherent in au flna:nce driven 
organisations and can be affected by a range of Company~specific and market~wide events. 

Lic.iulditv rlsk m3naoement <based-on commercial terms\: Rs. in Lakhs 
Pa.rtlculaJS On domond less than 33 lo 12:.. 12· Total 

1 ...... onths months months 
As on-March 31; 2·023 
A. Financial Assets 

C'~sh . .8nd cash equivalents - 3.12 . - 3,12 
Loans 355.11 . . . 355.11 
Investments . - 1,563 . .10 1,563,10 
Inventory . . 
Other Financial assets - 10.57 - 10.57 

Total 355.11 13.69 . 1 563.10 1 931.90 

e, flnanclal LiabiUfinri 
Other-financial llabllities . 1.32 . . 1.32 

Total . 1.32 . . f:3~ 

As on March 31, 2022 
A, Financial AsSets 

Cash and cash equivalents - 23.62 . . 23.62 
Lo~ns 42.16 - - . 42'.16 
Investments - .. 1,293.32 1,293.32 
Inventory . . 25.30 25:30 
Other Financial assets - 9.99 - - 9.99 

Total 42,16 33.61 25.30 1293.32 1394.39 

8'. •Firi"ancial Liabilities 
Otherlinancial liabillties - 1.41 . 1.41 

Total . 1.41 - . 1.41 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 
CIN: L51109WB1982PLC034938 

Notes to Financial Statementsfor the year ended March 31, 2022 

41-. Financial Instruments an~ related disclosures {continued) 

(.c) credit risk 

Credlt ri:Sk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial Joss to the Company. Cfed_it 
risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as-·concentratlonrisks. Pledge 
Pbligation risk ls the risk that rriay occur in case of default on_ part of Pledgee company which may imme_dli:tt81y ·amount to loss of assets 
of Company. The· Compa:ny !las adopted a policy of .only dealing with creditworthy counterpartles to mitigating the rlsk.qf flnan_qial toss 
from defatilts, C'ompany.'s credit risk arises prlncipatJy·from loans·and cash & cash equivalents. 

(dJ OiVid8nd lriCOme tlsk 
Oiv!deri,d income risk refers to the risk of changes in the Dividend income due to dip in t_he pertorrnance of the· investee_ companies . 

42. lillaturlty analysis ~f assets and liabilities 
The table:betow shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or .settled. 

Rs. In. Lakhs 
P8rtlculars within After 12 Total 

As on.March 3.1, 2023 
12 moriths lmonths 

AsS~ts 
cash.and-cash equivalents 3.12 - 3.12 
Loans - 355.11 355.11 
Investments - 1,563.10 1,563:10 
Inventories - - -Other Financial assets 10.57 - 10,57 
Current tax assets {Net) - 3.11 3.11 
Deferred Tax Assets {net) - - -Property, Plant & Equipment 0.02 0:02 
Other Non Financial Assets 110.90 110.9.0 

Total 13,69 2 032.24 2 045.93 
Lil':bllities 
Other financial liabllities 1.32 . 1.32 
Deferred Tax Liabilities {net) - 7.91 7.91 
Pr'dviSIOn's 0.87 0.87 
either rion-flnancial.liabilities 0.09 . 0.09 

Total 1.41 8.78 10.19 

As ~n March 31, 2022 
Assets 
C.as'h -and cash equivalents 23.62 23.62 
Loans - 42.16 42C16 
Investments - 1,293.32 1,293.32 
Inventories 25.30 25.30 
Other Filianclal assets 9,99 - 9.99 
Current-tax assets (Net) - 4,60 4.60 
Deferred Tax As.sets {net) - 3.51 3.51 
F'roperty, Plant & Equipment 0c06 0.06 
Other Non Financial Assets 610.00 610,00 

Total 
Llahllit'ias 

58:91 1.953.65 2.012;se 

Other financial liabilities 1.41 - 1.41 
Provlslot1s - 0.11 0.11 
Other .non~fihanciaf Uabiflties 0.05 - 0.05 

Total 1.46 0.11 1.57 



EASUN CAPITAL MARKETS. LIMITED 
GIN: l:.~1109WB1982PLC034938 

Notei; to Financial .Statement• for the·year ended Mar.i~· 31, 2Q22 · 

;, iAria1 .. t1ccsi1 ,Ratt--· .. . 

.. ~tlC' NUmei:~tnr ,DepOlllln(lt~i' 

cap1ral't0''1(ek·weig_hted·AsSets R·atio Total· Capllal To'tafRisk 
Funds Weighted Ass~ts 

ner I CRAR Capital Funds-Tier· Tot81 Risk 
I Weigl'lt8'd Asset,s 

Jler !l CRA~ Capital Funds-Tlef Tota! Ri$k 
II Weighted.Assets 

Llq9Jdlty CQveragEi:_f.l.atiq Total HbLA. l'otal"Net Calsfr 
• ,fma'inta:lned\ outnows. 

··~ . 
. J~J)J~Mb.~r.e. !~·hfeasli:01,1~P:W o:n·accom,t ·ofLoims' and:.the·Cre.dit ·faCility, {A's pe:'r' ArfneXUr.E!-1). 

·•*Ther.e;is·a·n·1n<Jr~~se·1r1 .P.ra.~1,1orrn {Nt.im·erator) due tofrnsh Loan glven-dur.irig they.ear-. 

.,Ao·.at 
;:iwarch-311 

".,,. .... , 
119.90% 

1'1'9.82%, 

o.ds% 

NIL"' 

. 

,Xstlit\ f(J}l~flan,:ft' al!ea,oirf<>J' ·: 
Mar.en 31_.· · "'/11~11~!:f.\1 • .... 
13h26%, .:a:.6~%" NI\ 

1.3·1.25% :a:n.% /lJ!,. 

0.01$ 700,00%. .Note*"' 

NU/' . . 

:44_ F!Q1:if~!(pE!_rta!nlt:iit9 lhei J)re\rioµs· year have,.been re·arranged / regr.ouped, wherever necessary, to make them comp~a!;)JEl·:with,thosi .. Qi ~ITent,y~af,. 

. ll,1·ptr.04r.roport 01 wen date.attached. 
For.V,K,TU.LSYAN & CO LL!' 
Cl:1Elfter~·AcCountants 
F.ti'm Rtlg. l;J0,;:·326749E 

;J~-~ 
,,aA\~i~)ip_ar·sn1;raf' 
. Pl/i;tn/)t 
~Mtmbets°~lp. N~~ 3007.85 
"~RADl;t>ANA'.1 J?.2,.N~_w C!T'R;~ad_.·,011itN9 ~10. 
·,Kblioiti,,- 700013, . 

Datea :i29tintay·ofMdy'?023 
llblN!·23:;;oo7a5!iGTVJH43.98 

For and on behalfof the E!oard otOfr~c.to.t:,, 
• EASUN CAPl'fAL MARKE'l'S i;rQ,. 

iiqk'fethp,r !Jirsctor. 

DIN •'09023"418, . 

~·~ 
Gliurav'BRnsal 

Chief FIMnciat·Offictir 

A·~ 
AP,lfffa .$.iil~lfl, 
filhiqi(ll' 
,oilii•,·btn>iln 

SwatLMoW 
·CbmQ80f/·$MW9N 



E-VOTING

Name & Registered Address of Sole/First 

named Member 

: 

Joint Holders Name (If any) : 

Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID : 

No. of Equity Shares Held : 

Dear Shareholder, 

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 

Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility to the members 

to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the 

Forty First (41st) Annual General Meeting to be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023 

at 12 noon IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) and at any adjournment thereof.  

The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL) to provide the e-voting facility. The e-voting facility is available at the link 

https://www.evotingindia.com. 

The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below: 

EVSN    

(Electronic Voting 

Sequence Number) 

User ID PAN / Sequence No. 

230906069 

The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 

(9:00AM) 

Friday, September 29, 2023 (5:00 PM) 

 Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notice before exercising your vote. 

Date: 06-09-2023 

Place: Kolkata 

By the Order of the Board 

For Easun Capital Markets Limited 

 Sd/- 

Swati Modi 

Company Secretary 
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